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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Board of Directors of
Ayen Enerji A.S.

Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Ayen Enerji A.S. (the “Company™)
and its subsidiaries (together will be referred as the “Group”), which comprise the consolidated balance sheet
as at 31 December 2014, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Group Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with Turkish Accounting Standards (“TAS"), and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with standards on auditing issued by Capital Markets Board and
Independent Auditing Standards which is a part of Turkish Auditing Standards published by the Public
Oversight Accounting and Auditing Standards Authority (“POA”). Those standards require that we comply
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.
Deloilte refars to one or mare of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Limited, a UK private company limited by guaranies ("DTTL"), ils network of member firms, and thair related
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Deloitte.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of Ayen Enerji A.$. and its subsidiaries as at 31 December 2014, and of their financial performance
and their cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Turkish Accounting Standards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

In accordance with paragraph four of Article 402 of the Turkish Commercial Code No. 6102 (“TCC™),
nothing has come to our attention that may cause us to believe that the Company’s set of accounts and
financial statements prepared for the period 1 January-31 December 2014 does not comply with TCC and
the provisions of the Company’s articles of association in relation to financial reporting.

In accordance with paragraph four of Article 402 of TCC, the Board of Directors provided us all the required
information and documentation with respect to our audit.

In accordance with paragraph four of Article 398 of TCC, the auditor’s report on early risk identification
system and committee has been submitted to the Board of Directors of the Company on 9 March 2015.

DRT BAGIMSIZ DENETIM VE SERBEST MUHASEBECiI MALi MUSAVIRLIK A.S.
Member of DELOITTE TOUCHE TOHMATSU LIMITED

e

H. Erdem Selguk
Partner

Ankara, 9 March 2015
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AYEN ENERJI A.S. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

AUDITED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2014

{Amounts are expressed in Turkish Lim (TLY)

Current Period
31 December

Prior Period-
31 December

ASSETS Notes 2014 2013
Current Assets 233.278.411 206.919.140
Cash and Cash Equivalents 29 188.692.607 95.281.050
Trade Receivables 4 31.100.923 46.379.422

Trade Receivables from Third Parties 4 31033313 46.071.801
Trade Receivables from Relared Parties 3 67.600 307.621
Other Receivables 5 1.343.418 1.567.700
Other Receivables from Third Parties 5 1.343.418 1.566.230
Other Receivables from Related Parties 3 - 1.470
Service Concession Arrangements 10 26.613.132 44.108.340

Prepaid Expenses 6 4.136.999 5.019.588
Assets Related 1o Current Tax 23 218.160 184,206
Other Current Assets i6 1.173.172 14.378.834
Non-Current Assets 1.177.704.576 961.357.557
Service Concession Arrangements 10 90.367.450 104.094.187
Financial Assets 464.936 108.295
Other Receivables 24.208.601 11.899.501

Orther Receivables from Third Parties 5 5.180.440 351,135
Other Receivables from Related Parties 3 19.028. 167 11.348.306
Property. Plant and Equipment 7 912.416.269 717.421.399
Intangible Assets 41.506.289 41,949,591
Other Inmangible Assers 8 19.363.156 19.806.458
Goodhwill 9 22.143.133 22143133
Prepaid Expenses 6 35.129.643 41.011.218
Deferred Tax Assets 23 22.802.550 21.939.066

Othier Non-Current Assets 16 50.808.838 22.934.100

TOTAL ASSETS 1.430.982.987 1.168.276.697

The accompanying notes presented between pages 10 and 75 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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AYEN ENERJI A.S. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

AUDITED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2014

{ Amounts are expressed in Turkish Lira {T1.))

LIABILITIES

Current Liabilities

Short-Term Borrowings

Short-Term Portion of Long-Term Borrowings
Other Financial Liabilities

Trade Payables
Trade Payables to Third Parties

Trade Payables 1o Related Pariies
Payables Related to Employee Benefits
Other Payables

Other Payables o Third Parties
Other Payables 1o Related Parties
Deferred Income
Current Tax Liabilities

Short-Term Provisions
Short-Term Provisions
Jor Emplovee Benefits
Payables Related to Current Tax

Other Current Liabilities

Non-Current Liabilities
Long-Term Borrowings
Other Financial Liabilities
Other Payables
Other Payables to Third Parties
Other Payables 1o Relaied Parties

Long-Term Provisions
Long-Ternt Provisions
Jfor Employee Benefits

TOTAL LIABILITIES

Current Period
31 December

Prior Period-
31 December

Notes 2014 2013
309.161.410 331.113.199

25 61.296.610 46.441.613
25 02 865.188 95.775.147
25 18.064 1.528.052
4 79.316.772 141.866.502
4 34.097.143 38.025.80¢
3 45.219.629 82.840.6093
14 389.771 579.399
5 39.521.797 28.126.463
3 048 426 1763136
3 38573371 26.361.327
6 1.972.617 5.335.707
23 16.108.726 7.554.708
14 606.919 388.973
14 606,919 388973
23 1.741.250 2.500.763
1.323.696 1.015.872

847.858.466 594.765.388

25 775.021.665 592.328.564
25 T0.175.251] 22,722
607.303 088,822

161.895 543,412

3 445.410 445,410
14 2.054.245 1.425.280
14 2.054.245 1.425.280
1.157.019.876 925.878.587

The sceompanying notes presenied between pages 10 and 73 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements,



AYEN ENERJI A.S. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

AUDITED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2014

{ Amounts are expressed in Turkish Lira (TL}

Current Period

31 December

Prior Period-
31 December

Notes 2014 2013
EQUITY 273.963.1H1 242.398.110
Equity Attributable to
Owners of the Parent 241.216.449 219.855.345
Paid-in Capital 17 171.042.300 171.042.300
Accumulated Other Comprehensive
Income or Expenses that may be Reclassified
Subsequently {o Profit or Loss 3.411.319 8.445.989
Currency Translation Reserves 22 3411319 8443 989
Accumulated Other Comprehensive
Income or Expenses that will not be
Reclassified Subsequentiy to Profit or Loss (456.568) (89.307)
Accumulated Gain/Loss on Remeasurement
of Defined Benefit Plans 32 (456.568) (59.307)
Restricted Reserves 17 56.068.938 51.589.982
Retamed Famings (15.687.799) 37.712.818
Net Profit/Loss for the Period 20.838.259 (48.846.437)
Non-Centroling Interests 32.746.662 22.542.765

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

1.430.982.987

1.168.276.697

The accompanying notes presented between pages 10 and 75 form an infegral part of these consolidated financial statements.

3



AYEN ENERH A.S. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

AUDITED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

{Amounts are expressed in Turkish Lira (TLY)

Current Period Prior Peripd-

1 January- I Junuary-
31 December 31 December
Nofes 2014 2013
PROFIT OR LOSS
Revenue L8 229.960.881 368.923.309
Cost of Sales () 15,18 (172,144.829) (309.350.074)
GROSS PROFIT / LOSS 57.816.052 59.573.235
General Administration Expenses (-) 13 (10.240.124) {8.276.890)
Other Income from Operating Activities 19 7.654.664 6.618.724
Other Expenses from Operating Activities (-) 19 (9.357.970) (5.236.086)
OPERATING PROFIT/ LOSS 45.872.922 52.658.983
Income from Investing Activities 20 12.264.571 27.340.231
Expenses from Investing Activities (-) 20 - (276.290)
OPERATING PROFIT/ LOSS BEFORE
FINANCE EXPENSE 58.137.493 79.722,924
Finance Expenses (-) 21 (18.846.914) (144.372.861)
PROFIT/LOSS BEFORE TAX
FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS 39,200,579 (64.649.937)
Tax Expense / Income from Continuing
Operations (9.337.058) 10.182.384
2
Current Tax Expense / Income 3 (10.108.726) {7.554,708)
7
Deferred Tax Expense / Income 23 771.668 17.737.092
PROFIT/ LOSS FOR THE PERIOD
FROM CONTINUING QPERATIONS 29.953.521 {54.467.553)
PROFIT/ LOSS FOR THE PERIOD 20.953.521 (54.467.553)
Prefit/ Loss for the Peried Attributable to:
Non-Controlling Interests 3.115.262 (5.621.116}
Owners of the Company 26.838,259 (48.846.437)
29.933.521 {54.467.553)
Earnings / losses per 1.000 shares 24 1,57 (2.86)

The accompanying notes presented between pages 10 and 75 1

4

orm an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.



AYEN ENERJI A.S. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

AUDITED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

{Amounts are expressed in Turkish Lira {TL)

Current Period Prior Period-
1 January- 1 January-
31 December 31 December
Notes 2014 2013
PROFIT/LOSS FOR THE PERIOD 29.953.521 (54.467.553)
Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income or
Expenses that will be Reclassified Subsequently to a3 (5.034.670) 8.359.998
Profit or Loss
Currency Translation Reserves 22 (5.034.670) 8.359.998
Accomulated Other Comprehensive Ineome or
Expenses that will not be Reclassified 22 (367.261) 147.344
Subsequently to Profit or Loss
Accumulated Gain / Loss on Remeasurement of
3 50 (177 3
Defined Benefit Plans 23 (439.077) 1§4.182
Deferred Tax Expense/Income 23 91.816 (36.838)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/EXPENSE (3.401.931) 8.507.342
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/EXPENSE 24.551.390 (45.960.211)
Total Comprehensive Income for the Period
Attributable to
Non- Controlling Interests 3.115.262 (5.621.116)
Owners of the Company 21.436.328 (4(.339.095)
24.551.590 (45.960.211}

The accompanying notes presented between pages 10 and 75 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.



9

SUDIDIRIS [BIMENS PAJEP1Osu0D oot jo ued [eidoaju ue udo) ¢ pur (] soded uaaming pawasaud sojou Susduedmoaos oy}

spuamap  swal socd 2 Tuipreda sauo)y votesiadeo)) 08| 03 spuspralp papagosun o jowsed oy v ang {4}
LN ard 4 SOLIETTL SPLSCRGIT 686°SHP'E (LEFYPR'RY) BINTILLY 14100 100 1 Q0T LY C1OT 12GUISER(| [ 10 57 sdduRiug]
tiro'8z6) sy 1976 (g7} - - - RE T} - - {«} pred spuaplaqy
FOUSOL tOl'80L - - - - - - - s DIBYS Ul oS RN
(zoesy) 0111299 Gar6ECor)  rreir S606'65C8 LEropgar) - . - auoag{asusdxa) aasuayAiu (R |
" - - - (8667148 TD FPERTO R PSY Ol - SaapsunLf,
REL EBS'8HT LEHFYEET G690 109L (159°9¢2) EO6'SR B66°LPR'TT 096'9RI 61 BIUOLTLE GOTTROTELL FLHT Adunuey | jo se aauejg
Aynby [LosatH] naag suey) Wpsuag $IAI252Y poLiag saLRLLE] ERRNATEN ey
oy, dunonuo)y at{) jo pauifa(] jo NDHBSURI] ay g pounnay L] RIS
LN £23UM () B) JUMLSHS I Aouaim;y S50777HI04] PoIoLIEaY
IR LYY N0 5507 7 ey (U]
sunby paleguunay

V.w_.,_xm iis) [LEiEE N
0) patpsseng
hUSBER{E I

gy asseadxy
J0 DWeay
aasuayadinn )
IYY
paREUInIaY

FEOT] A0 HIOK]
G} PAIISEERODY

aq ({1

e osuadxry

0 DO

sagsunpadinny

Ehli|lgl

PARIRUNDDY

STUNENE] PASVIDY

(ULL) eary gsyn ) ut passaaded e sjunculy )

10T ATHWIEA 1L AHANT dVEA HHL Y04
ALINOA NI SAONVID 40 INFWHLY LS Q4.LVAITOSNOD JALIANY

SHATUVIAISENS SLI ANV 'SV [FHANT NAAY



L

TEJURRHDFRYS JRIDURIE DOTRPLOSLED DE31) §o wed —:.“wu,mm BE QLIG) CF PUe (3] saffud HadM oy m.uuﬁ—umm.ua Salou mm_\ﬂ—nﬁmﬂ,_cuu_u Y|

{z mopgy sous uoigdianed sy ug saBueyd Mg PEe PIRT QAN 1L 0 S HOUDPYOSIOS OUE Ui STUBIPISGNS 30 HOISHIRI U1 Wody vsue sofumya paigpay (]
[1EE96°CLT TOYarLTE 6FSITIrE (895°95F) GBIy iify GSTRERYT (66L°289°ST) BEH'BYOOE HoLTTEr 1LY FHOT FOqIIDIN] [ JO SB s32UT{EY
(FSL PG} {#5L186) - - - - - - - prad spuapiaig
(0777} GHOEL (rzTsi) - - - (peesi} - - {2} 2IMDIS UONUPH0SUGD W afuiny)
GLENyY GLEOMY'S - - - - - - - jepdes azeys w1 aseau]
065 188°FT 9TSIE TN Iy e {19z 2ot (Lo FETS) H5TREROT - - - awonuyasundva ) sajsuatpadon oy,
b - N - LEbopd Rt {€6062EE8) QL6 RLEY - slajsuely
DT 86t E¥T SOLTRSET shyesioi e (Loear) GRO’SFFR (LEFOFE8P) RILTILLE I86°6RY 1S foerereiLl FLOT £duauup | fo se 22unjrg
Annlig ERIRITT [UERCN R SHE] HISUIE YAAIISIY POLID sHULD EIALXEDY rerdey
vi0g, Fuggoauo;y JO SI0UMLY 0} LA O SURE | BEHEGY pRHEDY IHEAN: g

-LIN A[RINEANEY JO JUIIBNSEUID Y| Ad0200.) SSETAOS] patasaY
Annhy BO §50° /Uy PN

mwwmﬁmzw:ﬂuuﬂ

SSO°] A0 JIJOU]
OF pOTjIssE)aaY
My jou

118 Teg) asud g
10 Boauf
aagsuaosdeny
B=TE )
panD Y

S5O 0 JOLS
O PISSENaY
2 i

e asuadxg

A0 DD
sarsaayadiey

20
polzpunsay

SRURLILE] POUTIAY

{ULL) i ysepan g ur possaadxa aag spunoury

. PLOC UHEWNADEA 1 QAIANT AVHA HHIL MO
ALINOT NI STONVHD A0 INAWALY.LS AILVATTOSNOD HA.LIANY

SATIVIGISANS SLI ANV 'SV NHANIT NIAY



AYEN ENERJI A.S. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

AUDITED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

{ Amounts are expressed in Turkish Lira ¢TL3}

Current Period Prior Period
1 January- 1 January-
31 December 31 December
Notes 214 2013
A, Cash Flows from Operating Activities
{Loss )/Profit for the Period 39.290.579 (64.6049.937)
Adjustments to reconcile profit/loss for the period
- Adjustments related to depreciation and amortization
expenses 7.8 20.1G3.462 25.161.439
- Adjustments retated to provisions 1.343.213 (22.976)
- Adjustments refated to interest income and expenses 20,21 26.914.473 20.948.515
- Discount {income)/expense i9 1.403.940 (465.203)
- Adjusmments related to accrued income 4 8.206.628 {4.996.726)
- Adjustments related to acerued expense 4 (16,793.899) 12.765.342
- Adjustments related to deferred finance expenses 6 2371610 2.758.753
- Adjustments related to gainfloss on disposal of non-
current assets 20 (17.421) {164.399)
- Realised foreign exchange (gainyloss due to foreign
currency translation 3.5394.154 5,464,354
- Unrealised foreign exchange loss/(gain) (22.486.149) 93.687.551
Changes in working capital
- Adjustments related to increase/decrease in trade
receivables 8.824.873 (14.382.5346)
- Adjustent related 1o increase/decrease in financial
assets (356.641} (75.27%
- Adjustments related to decrease in service
concession arrangements 40.975.332 401155187
- Adjustments related to increase/decreasse in other
receivables from operating activities 41.319.476 (16,799,034}
- Adjustments related to increase/decrease in trade
payables (48.912.773) 49 814.265
- Adjustments refated to decrease/inerease in other
liabilities from operating activities 27.009.410 21.191.042
141.790.267 170.334.348
Cash Generated From Operations
Income taxes paid 23 (7.554.70%) {6.995.860)
Other cash inflows/outflows {496.302) (217.987)
133,739,257 163.120.301

The accompanying notes presented between pages 10 and 75 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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AYEN ENERJI A.S. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

AUDITED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

(Amoums are expressed in Turkish Lira (TL}}

Current Period Prior Period
1 January- I January-
31 December 31 December
Notes 2014 2013
B. Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Proceeds from sales of property, plant and equipment 39,955 196.664
Payments for property, plant and equipment and
intangible asset (221022311} (116.875.335)
Tax related with investments (27.874.547) (20.937.989)
Interest received 2.439.437 2.444 871
Advances given for acquisiion of property, plant and
equipment (36.385,795) {2.935.607)
{282.803.261) {138.107.396)
€. Cash Flaws from Financing Activities
Cash obtained from borrowings 446.206,123 168.490.304
Cash used for repayments of the borrowings (172.959.178) (108.132.372)
Capital increase in non-controlling interests 8.0006.370 705.194
Interest paid (36.252.07%) (20.032.395)
Dividends paid {984.754) {928.631)
- owners of the Parent - (2.486)
- non-conirolling interests {984.7534) (926.145)
Change in consolidation structure (2.20%) -
Payments for the other financial liabilities (1.532.716) (10,220,845}
242.475.561 23.872.055
Encrease/(Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents
{A+B+C) 93.411.557 48.885.160
D. Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the
period 29 05.281.050 46.395.890
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period
(A+B+C+D) 29 188.692.607 95,281.050

The accompanying notes presented between puges 10 and 75 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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AYEN ENERJI A.S. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

(Amounts are expressed in Turkish Lira (TL))

ORGANIZATION AND OPERATIONS OF THE GROUP

Ayen Enerji A.S. (the “Company™ or “Ayen Enerji”} engages in the electricity production and trading
activities. The Company was established in 1990. The Company is a member of Aydiner Group. Main

shareholder of the Company is Aydiner Ingaat A.S. (“Aydmer Insaat™).

The Company is registered in Turkey and the registered address is as follows:

Hiilya Sok. No: 37, Gaziosmanpasa/Ankara

The Company is registered to Capital Markets Board (“CMB™) and its shares are publicly traded in
Borsa Istanbul. 15,01% of the shares of the Company is publicly held as of 31 December 2014 (31
December 2013: 15,01%) (Note 17).

As of 3] December 2014, the number of personnei of the Group is 237 (31 December 2013: 204).

The subsidiaries of the Company (“the Subsidiaries™), the nature of their business and their address of
registered head offices are as follows:

Subsidiaries

Place of incorporation and
the nature of the business

Direct
Share

Indirect
Share

Registered adress

Ayen Ostim Enerji Uretim
AN (*Ayen Ostim™}
Kayseri Elektrik Uretim
Sanayi ve Ticaret A.S.
(“Kayseri Elektrik™)

Ayen Elektrik Ticaret A.S.
("Ayen Elekirik™)

Aksu Temiz Enerji Elektrik
Uretim Sanayi ve Ticaret
A5 ("Aksu")

Ayen-AS Energji SHA
{*Ayen-AS™)

Ayel Elektrik Uretim Sanayii
ve Ticaret A.S. (“Avel
Elektrik™}

Araklh Dogalgaz Enerii
Sanayi ve Ticaret A.S.
(“Arakli Enerji™)

Ayen Energy Trading SHA
(“Ayen Trading™) (*)

Ayen Energy Trading
1.0.0. Beograd-StariGrad
(“Avyen Serbia) (%)

Ayen Energija Trgovanje z
Elektriéno Energijo D.O.O.
{(“Ayen Slovenia™) (*)

(*}  Has been inciaded in the consolidation as of 31 December 2014,

Electricity production and
trading

Electricity production,
distribution and trading

Electricity trading

Electricity production and
trading

Electricity production and
trading

Electricity production,
distribution and trading

Electricity production and
trading

Electricity trading

Electricity trading

Electricity trading
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76%

96%

100%

70%

T6%

96%

100%

70%

§9%

82%

76%

100%

100%

100%

Hiilya Sekak No: 37
Gaziosmanpaga Ankara

Yemliha Kasabasi Kayseri

Hitlya Sokak No: 37
Gaziosmanpaga Ankara

Hiitya Sokak No: 37
Gaziosmanpasa Ankara

Bulevardi Deshmoret e
Kombit Qendra e Biznesit
Twin Towers, Kulla nr.2,
Kati i 10 Tirane/Albania
{Arnavutluk)

Hiilya Sokak No: 37
Gaziosmanpasa Ankara

Hiilya Sokak No: 37
Gaziosmanpaga Ankara

Butevardi Deshmoret ¢
Kombi¢ Qendra e Biznesit
Twin Towers, Kuila nr.2,

Katii 10 Tirane/Albania
{Arnavutiuk)
Kosangicev Venac Sokak
No: 26, 11000 Belgrad,
Serbia (Sirbistan)

Dolenjska cesta 148, 1000
Ljublfana, Slovenia
{Slovenya}



AYEN ENERJI A.S. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 21 DECEMBER 2014

{Amounts are expressed in Turkish Lira (TL))

ORGANIZATION AND OPERATIONS OF THE GROUP (cont’d)

Place of mcorporation and Direct Indirect
Subsidiaries the nature of the business Share Share Registered adress

Ayen Dogalgaz Enerji Hitlya Sokak No: 37
Uretim Sanayi ve Ticaret Gazios;nan asa Ankara
AS. ("Aven Dogalgaz™i(*) Pt

Electricity production and o0 o

, 90%, 9%

trading

{*y  Has not been included in the consolidation since the Company is non-operating and has no material effect an the consalidated
financial staiements. The project term of the Ecenceis cancelled with the assent of EMRA and therefore the project is terminated
by the management in the Extraordinary General Assembly as of 27 Getober 2014,

Place of incorporation and Direct Indirect
Subsidiary the nature of the business Share Share Registered adress
Harbive Mahaliesi Asker
Elektrik Piyasalar Igletim Electricity market Ocagr Caddesi Stizer Plaza
AS. (CEPIAS™H) operations 1% 1% Kat 4 No :135 Sisli -Istanbul

{*)  Participated to £EPIAS as of December 2014,

Camlica 1 Hydro Electric Power Plant (“HEPP”) is one of the power plant of Ayen Enerji and
constructed under Build-Operate and Transfer (“BOT™) model, transferred to EGIC as of 12 December
2013 at 12:00 pm.

The production license for the Wind Power Plant (“WPP”) located in Akbiik with an annual production
capacity of 31,5 MW obtained by Ayen Enerji on 18 January 2007 for 49 years. The first part of the
plant with a capacity of 16.8 MW and the second part of the plant with a capacity of 14,7 MW started
to operate on 19 March 2609 and 3 April 2009 respectively.

Biiyiikdiiz HEPP, of Ayen Enerji is located in Glimiishane, Kiirtiin with an installed capacity of 70,8
MW has production licence for 49 years. The power plant started to operate on 1 June 2012.

Mordogan WPP, of Ayen Enerji, is located in [zmir, Karaburun with an installed capacity of 30,75 MW
and has a production licence for 49 years. The power plant started to operate on 27 September 2013,

Kormaz WPP, of Ayen Enerji, is located in fzmir, Karaburun with an installed capacity of 24 MW and
has a production licence for 49 years. The first part of the plant with an installed capacity of 10 MW and
the second part of the plant with an installed capacity of 14 MW started to operate respectively August
and September 2012,

Yamula Dam, of Kayseri Elekirik, was constructed under BOT model. The Dam located on Kizilirmak
River. The installed capacity is 100 MW and the annual production capacity of the dam is 422 million
kWh. The construction of the Dam started in 1998 and began to operate in August 2005, The operational
period for Yamula Dam is 20 years and will end in 2023,

The main operation of Ayen Ostim which is located at Ostim Organize Sanayi Bélgesi and began to
operate in July 2004, is to supply electricity to end users in the market according to “Act of Electricity
Market™ (within “Electricity Market Balancing and Settlement Regulation™). The installed capacity of
the natural gas power plant is 41 MW, 24% of shares in Ayen Ostim’s capital belongs to Aydimner insaat
which is the main sharcholder of the Company.

The main operation of Ayen Elektrik is the sale, import and export of the electricity and/or the electricity
capacity on wholesale and directly to end users in accordance with the “Regulation for the Electricity
Market License”, “Wholesale License” and the other related regulations.

11
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AYEN ENERJI A.S. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

{Amounts are expressed in Turkish Lira (TLYH

ORGANIZATION AND OPERATIONS OF THE GROUP (cont’d)

The production license for the Wind Power Plant (“WPP”) located in Kayseri, Yahyali with an annual
production capacity of 72 MW obtained by Aksu Temiz Enerji Elektrik Uretim Sanayi ve Ticaret A.S.
on 29 Nevember 2007 for 49 years. The first part of the plant with a capacity of 30 MW, the second part
of the plant with a capacity of 36 MW and third part of the plant with a capacity of 6 MW started to
operate respectively in March, April and May of 2012,

Ayen-AS is engaged with the infrastructure works related to the contruction and 41 years of operation
of Fan River HEPPs with an installed capacity of 110,7 MW in Albania. 28 MW of the power plant is
planned to be started to operate in the first half of 2013,

The nature of operations of Ayel Elektrik is the sale, import and export of the electricity and/or the electricity
capacity on wholesale and directly 1o the end users in accordance with the “Regulation for the Electricity
Market License”, “Whelesale License™ and the other related regulations.

Avyen Enerji has acquired 76% shares of Arakli Enerji Dogalgaz Uretim Sanayi ve Ticaret A.S. on 9
May 2012, Production license of the HEPP which will be constructed in Trabzon, Arakli with an
installed capacity of 72 MW has been approved by EMRA. As of 19 January 2015, with the approval of
EMRA, installed capacity of the power plant has been increased to 98,36 MW.

Ayen Elektrik participated in 100% share of Ayen Energji Trading SHA which established with ALL
3.500.000 (EURO 25.000) nominal capital. The Company has established in Tirane- Albania in accordance
with Albania laws at 30 September 2013. As of 31 December 2013, the Company has not been included in
the consolidation since it has no material effect on the consolidated financial statements.

Ayen Elektrik Ticaret A.S participated in 100% share of Ayen Energji Trading D.0.0O. (Serbia) with EURO
10.000 nominal capital and Ayen Energji Trgovanje z Elektriéno Energijo, D.0.O. (Slovenia) with EURG
67.500 nominal capital in respectively 13 June 2014 and 19 June 2014. The main operations of these
companies are to sale, import and export of the electricity and/or the electricity capacity as wholesale and
sale directly to end users particularly to European Countries in accordance with the European Union
regulations.

Approval of consolidated financial statements:

Board of Directors has approved the consolidated financial statements for the period between 1 January
- 31 December 2014 and delegated publishing it on 9 March 2015. No authority other than Board of
Directors and General Assembly has the right to modify the consolidated financial statements.

BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Basis of presentation

Statement of Compliance

The Company and its Turkish subsidiaries maintain their books of accounts and prepares its statutory
financial statements in accordance with accounting principles in the Turkish Commercial Code and tax
legislation.

Ayen-AS and Ayen Trading maintain their books of account in Albanian LEK (“ALL") in accordance
with accounting principles in Albania. Ayen Slovenia and Ayen Serbia maintain their books of accounts
in EURO in accordance with accounting principles in Slovenia and Serbia respectively.
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AYEN ENERJI A.S. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

(Amounts are expressed in Turkish Lim (TR}

BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)

Basis of presentation (cont’d)
Statement of Compliance {cont’d)

The accompanying consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with the requirements
of Capital Markets Board (“CMB”) Communiqué Serial II, No: 14.1 “Basis of Financial Reporting in
Capitai Markets”, which were published in the Official Gazette No:28676 on 13 June 2013. The
accompanying consohidated financial statements are prepared based on the Turkish Accounting
Standards/Turkish Financial Reporting Standards and Interpretations (“TAS/TFRS”) that have been put
into effect by the Public Oversight Accounting and Auditing Standards Authority (“POA™) under Article
5 of the Communiqué,

In addition, the consolidated financial statements and disclosures are presented in accordance with the
publication by CMB dated 7 June 2013,

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared in terms of Turkish Lira on
the historical cost basis except for the fair value measurement of certain financial assets and habilities,

Functional Currency

The individual financial statements of each group entity are presented in the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates (its functional currency). For the purpose of the
consolidated financial statements, the results and financial position of each entity are expressed in
Turkish Lira, which is the functional, and presentation currency of the Company and the reporting
currency for the consolidated financial statements.

Subsidiaries of the Group are measured using the currency that has significant impact on the entity or
on the operations of entity, which reflects the economic substance of the underlying events and
circumstances relevant to the entity. In this context, Ayen-AS and Ayen Trading is measured using ALL.
According to TAS 21, balance sheet items (except capital accounts) in terms of ALL have been included
into consolidation by being translated to TI. with buying rate applicable as of balance sheet date (ALL
1= TL 0,0201). Additionally, Ayen Slovenia and Ayen Serbia is measured using EURO and the balance
sheet items (except capital accounts) in terms of EURO have been included into consolidation by being
translated to TL. with buying rate applicable as of balance sheet date (EURO 1 = TL 2,8207). Profit or
loss statement and other comprehensive income items have been included into consolidation by being
transtated to TL with buying rate applicable at the transaction date.

Capital and capital reserves are carried forward with their historical nominal costs and any related
exchange component of that gain or loss and the translation gain’ (loss) realized during the translation
of balance sheet and profit or loss statement is also recognized in capital translation gain-loss accounts
under equity.

Preparation of Consolidated Financial Statements in Hvperinflationary Periods

With the decision taken on 17 March 2005, the CMB has announced that, effective from
[ January 2005, the application of inflation accounting is no longer required for companies operating in
Turkey and preparing their financial statements in accordance with TAS. Accordingly, the Company
did not apply TAS 29 “Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economies™ (“TAS 297) in its financial
statements for the accounting periods starting 1 January 2003.

13



AYEN ENERJI A.S. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

{Amounts are expressed in Turkish Lira (TL)}

BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)

Basis of presentation {cont’d)

Basis of Consolidation

As of 31 December 2014 and 31 December 2013, details of the Company’s subsidiaries are as follows:

Group’s proportion of
ownership and voting
power held (%)

Place ot

mcorporation and
Subsidiaries 2014 2013 operation Principle activity
Ayen Ostim 76 76 Ankara- Ankara Electricity production and trade
Kayseri Elektrik 96 96 Ankara- Kayseri  Electricity production, distribution and trade
Ayen Elekinik 100 100 Ankara- Ankara Electricity trade
Aksu 70 70 Ankara- Kayseri Electricity production and trade
Ayen-AS 89 87 Tirane-Albania Electricity production and trade
Avyel Elektrik(*) 82 55 Ankara- Ankara  Electricity production, distribution and trade
Arakll Enerji 76 76 Ankara- Trabzon Electricity production and trade
Ayen Dog@algaz (*%) 90 90 Ankara Electricity production and trade
Ayen Trading (**+¥) 100 100 Tirane-Albania Electricity trade
Ayen Serbia (¥*¥%) 100 - Belprad-Serbia Electricity trade
Ayen Slovenia (**) 100 - Ljubliana, Slovenia Electricity trade

(*)  As aresult of the increase in share capital on 18 December 2014, the share of the Group has increased to 82%.

{**} Has not been included in the consolidation since the Company is non-operating and has no material effect on the
consolidated financial statements. The project term of the licence is cancelied with the assent of EMRA and therefore the
project is terminated by the management in the Extraordinary Gerieral Assembly as of 27 Qctober 2014,

(**#%y Has been included in the consolidation as of 31 December 2014,

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the {inancial statements of the Company
and entities controlled or jointly controlled by the Company (its subsidiaries). Control is achieved when

the Company:

e has power over the investee;

e s exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee; and

e  has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Company reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that
there are changes to one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

14
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AYEN ENERJI A.S. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

{Amounts are expressed in Turkish Eira {T1))

BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)
Basis of presentfation {cont’d)

Basis of Consolidation {cont’d)

When the Company has less than a majority of the voting rights of an investee, it has power over the
investee when the voting rights are sufficient to give it the practical ability to direct the relevant activities
of the investee unilaterally. The Company considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing
whether or not the Company’s voting rights in an investee are sufficient to give it power, including:

+ thesize of the Company’s holding of voting rights relative to the size and dispersion of holdings of
the other vote holders;

s potential voting rights held by the Company, other vote holders or other parties;

e rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

*  any additional facts and circumstances that indicate that the Company has, or does not have, the
current ability to direct the relevant activities at the time that decisions need to be made, including
voting patterns at previous shareholders’ meetings.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Company obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases
when the Company loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a subsidiary
acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income from the date the Company gains control untii the date when the Company
ceases to conirol the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are atiributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-conirolling interests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed
to the owners of the Company and to the non-controliing interests even if this results in the non-
controliing interests having a deficit balance.

Where necessary, adjustiments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies into line with those used by other members of the Group.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Changes in the Group s ownership interesis in existine subsidiaries

Changes in the Group's ownership interests in subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing control
over the subsidiaries are accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group's
interests and the non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests in
the subsidiaries. Any difference between the amount by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted
and the fair value of the consideration paid or received is recognized directly in equity and attributed to
owners of the Company.
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AYEN ENERJI A.S. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

{Amounts are expressed in Turkish Lira {F1.)}

BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)

Basis of presentation (cont’d)

Basis of Consolidation (cont’d)

Changes in the Group s ovnership interests in existing subsidiaries (cont'd)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss and is
calculated as the difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received and
the fair value of any retained interest and (ii) the previous carrying amount of the assets (including
goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-controlling interests. All amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to that subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group
had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss
or transferred to another category of equity as specified/permitted by applicable TAS). The fair value of
any investment retained in the former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is regarded as the fair
value on initial recognition for subsequent accounting under TAS 39, when applicable, the cost on initial
recognition of an investment in an associate or a joini venture.

Changes in the Accounting Policies

Significant changes in accounting policies and accounting errors are applied retrospectively and prior
periods financial statements are adjusted accordingly. There is no significant change in Group's
accounting policies in current year.

Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors

If changes in accounting estimates relate only for one period, changes are applied in the current period but
if changes in estimates relate more than one period, changes are applied both in the current and following
periods prospectively. Significant acconting estimates and errors used in the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements are explained in note 2.6.

New and Revised Turkish Accounting Standarts

(a) Amendments to TASs affecting amounts reported and/or disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements

None.
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AYEN ENERJI A.S. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

“{Amounts are expressed in Turkish Lim (TL)

BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)
New and Revised Turkish Accounting Standarts (cont’d)

(b) Standards, amendments and interpretations to existing standards effective in 2014 but not
relevant to the Group

Amendments to TFRS 10, 11, TAS 27 Iivestment Entities’

Amendments to TAS 32 Offserting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities'

Amendments to TAS 36 Recoverable Amownt Disclosures for Non-Financial Assets’

Amendments to TAS 39 Novation of Derivatives and Continuation of Hedge
Accounting’

TFRS Comment 2] Levies?

TAS 21 (Amendments) Effects of Foreing Currency Changes™

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014,
* Effective sfier the date of amendment, 12 November 2014,

Amendments to TFRS 10, 11, TAS 27 Investment Entities

This amendment with the additional provisions of TFRS 10 provide 'investment entities' (as defined) an
exemption from the consolidation of particular subsidiaries and instead require that an investment entity
measure the investment in each eligible subsidiary at fair value through profit or loss.

Amendments to TAS 32 Offsetring Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

The amendments to TAS 32 clarify existing application issues relating to the offset of financial assets
and financial liabilities requirements. Specifically, the amendments clarify the meaning of ‘currently
has a legally enforceable right of set-off” and ‘simultaneous realization and settlement”,

Amendments to TAS 36 Recoverable Amount Disclosures for Non-Financial Assers

As a consequence of TFRS 13 Fair Falue Measurements, there are amendments in the explanations
about the measurement of the recoverable amount of an impaired asset. This amendment is limited to
non-financial assets and paragraphs 130 and 134 of TAS 36 has been changed.

Amendments to TAS 39 Novation of Derivatives and Continuation of Hedge Accounting

This amendment to TAS 39 makes it clear that there is no need to discontinue hedge accounting if a
hedging derivative is novated, provided certain criteria are met.

TFRS Comment 21 Levies

TERS Comment 21 identifies the obligating event for the recognition of a liability as the activity that
triggers the payment of the levy in accordance with the relevant legislation.
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AYEN ENERJI A.S. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

{Amounis are expressed in Turkish Lira (TLY

BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)

New and Revised Turkish Accounting Standarts (cont’d)

(b) Standards, amendments and interpretations to existing standards effective in 2014 but not
relevant to the Group (cont’d)

Amendments to TAS 21 The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates

Part (b) in 39" paragraph of Amendments to TAS 21 The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates
has been amended as follows:

“(b) Income and expenses are translated with the foreign exchange rate which is applicable in transaction
date in each financial statements in which profit or loss and other comprehensive income (including
comperative amounts) are presented.

(¢) New and Revised TASs in issue but not yet effective

Group has not applied the following new and revised TFRSs that have been issued but are not yet
effective:

TFRS 9 Financial Instruments

Amendments to TFRS 9 and TFRS 7 TFRS 9 and Mandatory Effective Date of TFRS 9 and Transition
Disclosures

Amendments to TAS 19 Defined Benefit Plans: Emplovee Contributions '

Annual Improvements to TFRS 2, TFRS 3, TFRS 8 TFRS 13, TAS 16 and TAS 38, TA5 24/

2010-2012 Cwele TFRS 9, TAS 37, TAS 39

Annual Improvements to

2011-2013 Cycle TFRS 1, TFRS 3, TFRS 13, TAS 40/

Amendments to TAS 16 and TAS 38 Clarification  of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation  and

Amortisation
Amendments to TAS 16 and TAS 41  Agriculture: Bearer Planis®
Amendments 1o TAS 1, TAS 17,
TAS 23, TAS 36 and TAS 40

Amendments to TFRS 11and TFRS | Accounting for Acquisition of Interests in Joint operations *

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014,
* Effective for annual periods beginning on or afier 1 January 2016

TIFRS 9 Financial Instruments

TFRS 9, issued in November 2009, introduces new requirements for the classification and measurement
of financial assets. TFRS 9 was amended in October 2010 to include requirements for the classification
and measurement of financial liabilities and for derecognition.

Amendments to TFRS 9 and TFRS 7 Mandatory Effective Date of TFRS 9 and Transition
Disclosures

On November 2013, it is tentatively decided that the mandatory effective date of TFRS 9 will be no
earlier than annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018.

18
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AYEN ENERJI A.S. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

{Amounts are expressed in Turkish Lira (TLY

BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {cont’d)
New and Revised Turkish Accounting Standarts (cont’d)

(¢) New and Revised TASs in issue but not yet effective (cont’d)

Amendments to TAS 19 Defined Benefit Plans: Employee Contributions

This amendment clarifies the requirements that relate to how contributions from employees or third
parties that are linked to service should be attributed to periods of service. In addition, it permits a
practical expedient if the amount of the contributions is independent of the number of years of service,
in that contributions, can, but are not required, to be recognised as a reduction in the service cost in the
period in which the related service is rendered.

Annual Improvements to 2010-20412 Cycle

TFRS 2: Amends the definitions of 'vesting condition’ and "market condition’ and adds definitions for
'performance condition' and 'service condition'

TFRS 3: Require contingent consideration that is classified as an asset or a liability to be measured at
fair value at each reporting date.

TFRS 8: Requires disclosure of the judgements made by management in applying the aggregation
criteria to operating segments, clarify reconciliations of segment assets only required if segment assets

are reported regularly.

T¥FRS 13: Clarify that issuing TFRS 13 and amending TFRS 9 and TAS 39 did not remove the ability
{0 measure certain short-term receivables and payables on an undiscounted basis (amends basis for
conclusions only).

TAS 16 and TAS 38: Clarify that the gross amount of property, plant and equipment is adjusted in a
manner consistent with a revaluation of the carrying amount.

TAS 24: Clarify how payments to entities providing management services are to be disclosed.
Anmual Improvements fo 2011-2013 Cycle

TFRS 3: Clarify that TFRS 3 excludes from its scope the accounting for the formation of a joint
arrangement in the financial statements of the joint arrangement itseif.

TFRS 13: Clarify the scope of the portfolio exception in paragraph 52.

TAS 40: Clarifying the interrelationship of TFRS 3 and TAS 40 when classifying property as investment
property or owner-occupicd property.

19
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BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)
New and Revised Turkish Accounting Standarts (cont’d)

(c) New and Revised TASs in issue but not yet effective (cont’d)

Annual Improvements to 2011-2013 Cyele {cont’d)

Amendments to TAS 16 and TAS 38 Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and
Amaortisation

This amendment clarifies that that a depreciation method that is based on revenue that is generated by
an activity that includes the use of an asset is not appropriate for property, plant and equipment, and
introduces a rebuttable presumption that an amortisation method that is based on the revenue generated
by an activity that includes the use of an intangible asset is inappropriate, which can only be overcome
in imited circumstances where the intangible asset is expressed as a measure of revenue, or when it can
be demonstrated that revenue and the consumption of the economic benefits of the intangible asset are
highly correlated. The amendment also adds guidance that expected future reductions in the selling price
of an item that was produced using an asset could indicate the expectation of technological or
commercial obsolescence of the asset, which, in turn, might reflect a reduction of the future economic
benefits embodied in the asset.

Amendments to TAS 16 and TAS 41 and Amendments te TAS 1, TAS 17, TAS 23, TAS 36 ve TAS
40 Agricnlture: Bearer Plants

This amendment include “bearer plants” within the scope of TAS 16 rather than TAS 41, allowing such
assets to be accounted for a property, plant and equipment and measured after initial recognition on a
cost or revaluation basis in accordance with TAS 16. The amendment also introduces a definition of
'bearer plants' as a living plant that is used in the production or supply of agricultural produce, is expected
to bear produce for more than one period and has a remote likelihood of being sold as agricultural
produce, except for incidental scrap sales, and clarifies that produce growing on bearer plants remains
within the scope of TAS 41.

Amendments to TAS.16 and TAS 41 leads changes in related parts of TAS 1, TAS 17, TAS 23, TAS
36 and TAS 40 standards.

Amendments to TFRS 11 and TFRS 1 Accounting for Acquisition of Interests in Joint operations

This amendment requires an acquirer of an interest in a joint operation in which the activity constitutes
a business to:

¢ apply all of the business combinations accounting principles in TFRS 3 and other TFRSs, except
for those principles that conflict with the guidance in TFRS 11

» disclose the information required by TFRS 3 and other TFRSs for business combinations.
Amendmenis to TFRS 11 leads changes in related parts of TFRS 1 standard.

The Group evaluates the effects of these standards on the consolidated financial statements.
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BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Related Parties

A related party is a person or entity that is related to the entity that is preparing its financial statements
a) A person or a close member of that person's family is related to a reporting entity if that person:

(i)  bas control or joint control over the reporting entity;

(i1}  has significant influence over the reporiing entity; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of the reporting entity or of a parent of the
reporting entity.

(b) An entity is related to a reporting entity if any of the following conditions applies:

() The entity and the reporting entity are members of the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related (o the others).

(ii)  One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity {or an associate or joint venture
of a member of a group of which the other entity is a member).

(ii1) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.

{iv} One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an associate of the third
entity.

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of emplovees of either the
reporting entity or an entity related to the reporting entity. If the reporting entity is itself such
a plan, the sponsoring employers are also related to the reporting entity.

(vi) The entity is controiled or jointly controlled by a person identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i} has significant influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

Revenue
Electricity sales revenue is recognised on an accrual basis at the time the electricity is distributed.

Interest income related {o service concession arrangements is recognised in accordance with TFRS
Comment 12.

Dividend and interest revenie

Interest revenue is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective
interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through
the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount.

Dividend revenue from investments is recognized when the sharcholders’ rights to receive payment have
been established.
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BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)
Application of TFRS Comment 12 - Service Concession Arrangements

TFRS Comment 12 interpretation gives guidance on the accounting by operators for public-to-private
service concession arrangements. The service concession arrangement of Yamula (Kayseri Elektrik)
dam of the Group are accounted in accordance with TFRS Comment 12,

Under the terms of contractual arrangements within the scope of TFRS Comment 12, the Group acts as
a service provider. The operator constructs or upgrades infrastructure used to provide a public service
and operates and maintains that infrastructure for a specified period of time,

The Group recognises a financial asset to the extent that it has an unconditional contractuai right to
receive cash from or at the direction of the grantor for the construction services related to hydroelectric
power plants in the context of BOT model. The amount due from or at the direction of the grantor is
accounted for as a receivable in accordance with TAS 39 "Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement”. The difference between the gross receivable and the present value of the receivable is
recognised as unearned finance income and the interest calculated using the effective interest method is
recognised in the profit or loss statement,

The receivables that are due but not collected as of the balance sheet date are classified as due receivables
from the grantor and carried at their net realisable value (Note 10).

There are no liabilities for maintenance and repair of the facility or any restoration costs at the time of
transfer of Yamula to Electricity Generation Incorporated Company (“EGIC”) when the licence periods
end.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated
Impairment losses. Land is not depreciated and carried at cost less accumulated impairment,

Properties in the course of construction for production, rental or administrative purposes, are carried at
cost, less any recognized impairment loss. Cost includes professional fees. Borrowing costs directly
attributable to the acquisition which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets. Such properties are classified
to the appropriate categories of property, plant and equipment when completed and ready for intended
use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as other property assets, commences when the assets
are ready for their intended use.
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BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)
Property, Plant and Equipment (cont’d)

Depreciation is charged so as to write off the cost or valuation of assets, other than land and properties
under construction, over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method. The estimated
useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at each year end, with the effect of
any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis. The depreciation periods for
aforementioned assets are as follows:

Yillar
Buildings 45
Land improvements 10
Plant, machinery and equipment 5-35
Motor vehicles 3
Furniture and {ixtures 5

The gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is
determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognized in profit or loss.

Where the carrying amount of an asset is greater than its estimated recoverable amount, it is written
down immediately to its recoverable amount, as there are no expected future economic benefits. The
recoverable amount of the property, plant and equipment is the higher of future net cash flows from the
utilization of this property, plant and equipment or fair value less cost to sell. Net sales price of an asset
is its fair value less costs to sell and its value in use. Fair value less costs to sell is the amount obtainable
from the sale of an asset less the costs of disposal. Value in use is the present value of the future cash
flows expected to be derived from an asset plus the residual value of the related assets.

Repair and maintenance expenses are charged {0 the consolidated statement of profit or loss during the
financial period in which they are incurred. The cost of major subsequent expenditures is included in
the carrying amount of the asset when it is probable that future economic benefits in excess of the
originally assessed standard of performance of the existing asset will flow to the Group.

Intangible Assets

Intangible assets comprise wholesale license, energy production licenses, other rights and other
intangible assets that are likely to generate future economic benefits to the Group. Licences and other
identified assets are booked in consolidated financial statements with their net value after deducting
accumulated depreciations and permanent impairments, if’ any, from their acquisition costs. Other
intangible assets that are likely to generate economic benefits are recognized with their fair values on
agreement date. These contractual intangible assets have certain useful lives and recognized with
deducting accumulated depreciations from acquisition costs. Intangible assets are amortized on a straight
line basis over their estimated useful lives for a period not exceeding 5 - 45 years (Note 8).
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BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)

Impairment of Tangible and Intangible Assets Other Than Goodwill

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible
assets to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If
any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the
extent of the impairment loss (if any). When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an
individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the
asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets
are also allocated fo individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest
group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangibie assets not yet available for use are tested for
impairment at least annually, and whenever there is an indication that the asset may be impaired.
Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for
which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount.
An impairment loss is recognized immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a
revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset {or a cash-generating
unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss
been recognized for the asset (or cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss
1s recognized immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in
which case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase.

Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets,

which are assets that necessarily iake a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or

sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their

intended use or sale. In 2014, TL 13.467.493 of borrowing costs regarding the investment loans (31-
December 2013: TL 5.408.507) is capitalized over tangible assets (Note 7)

All other borrowing costs are recognized in the statement of profit or loss in the period in which they
are incurred.
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BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)
Business combinations

The acquisition of subsidiaries and businesses are accounted for using the acquisition method. The
consideration transferred in a business combination is measured at fair value, which is calculated as the
sum of the acquisition-date fair values of the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for
control of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their
fair value, except that:

o deferred tax assets or liabilities and assets or Habilities related to employee benefit arrangements are
recognised and measured in accordance with TAS 12 Income Taxes and TAS 19 Employee Benefits
respectively;

o liabilities or equity instruments related fo share-based payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-
based payment arrangements of the Group entered into to replace share-based payment arrangements
of the acquiree are measured in accordance with TFRS 2 Share-based Payment at the acquisition
date; and

s assets {(or disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale in accordance with TFRS 5 Non-current
Assers Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations are measured in accordance with that Standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer's previously held equity interest
in the acquiree (if any) over the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifable assets acquired
and the Habilities assumed. If, afier reassessment, the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the consideration transferred, the
amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer's previously
held interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss as a bargain
purchase gain,

When the consideration transferred by the Group in a business combination includes assets or Habilities
resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement, the contingent consideration is measured at its
acquisition-date fair value and included as part of the consideration transferred in a busiess
combination. When the changes in the fair value of the contingent consideration that qualify as
measurement pertod adjustments are adjusted retrospectively, with corresponding adjustiments against
goodwill. Measurement period adjustments are adjustments that arise from additional information
obtained during the *measurement period” {which cannot exceed one year from the acquisition date)
about facts and circumstances that existed at the acquisition date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014
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BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)
Business combinations (cont’d)

The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair value of the contingent consideration that do not
qualify as measurement period adjustments depends on how the contingent consideration is classified.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured at subsequent reporting dates and
its subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity. Contingent consideration that is classified as
an asset or a liability is remeasured at subsequent reporting dates in accordance with TAS 39, or TAS
37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets, as appropriate, with the corresponding gain
or loss being recognized in profit or loss.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at cost as established at the date of acquisition
of the business less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to each of the Group's cash-generating
units (or groups of cash-generating units) that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment annually, or more
frequently when there is an indication that the unit may be impaired. If the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit is less than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the other assets of the unit pro rata
based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised
directly in profit or loss in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. An impairment loss recognised
for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the attributable amount of goodwill is included in the
determination of the profit or loss on disposal.

Deferred Financing Charges
Deferred financing charges primarily comprising legal and other costs incurred in relation to obtaining

long-term borrowings from financing institutions are amortized over the remaining life of the long-term
borrowings (Note 6).
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BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)
Financial Instruments

Financial Assets

All financial assels are recognized and derecognized on a trade date where the purchase or sale of a
financial asset is under a contract whose terms require delivery of the financial asset within the timeframe
established by the market concerned, and are initially measured at fair value, plus transaction costs
except for those financial assets classified as at fair value through profit or loss, which are initially
measured at fair value.

Financial assets are classified into the following specified categories: ‘financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss’ (FVTPL), ‘held-to-maturity investments’, ‘available-for-sale’ (AFS) financial
assets and ‘loans and receivables’. Classification is determined during initial recording, according to
purpose acquisition and specification of the asset.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of
allocating interest income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exacily
discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period.

Income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt instruments other than those financial assets
designated as at FVTPL.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative {inancial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. Loans and receivables are measured at amortized cost using the effective
interest method, less any impairment. Interest income is recognized by applying the effective interest
rate, except for short-term receivables when the effect of discounting is immaterial.

Casl and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, and other short-term highly
liquid investments which their maturities are three months or less {from date of acquisition and that are
readily convertible to a known amount of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value.
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BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)
Financial Instruments {cont’d)

Finansal labilities

Financial labtlities are classified as either financial liabilities at FVTPL or other financial liabiljties.

Financial ligbilities ar FVTPL

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL where the financial Hability is either held for trading or
it 1s designated as at FVTPL. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are stated at {air value, with any gains or
losses arising on remeasurement recognized in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognized in profit or
loss incorporates any interest paid on the financial Hability and is included in the ‘other gains and losses’
line item.

Orther financial iabilities

Other financial liabilities, including borrowings and trade and other payables, are initially measured at
fair value, net of transaction costs.

Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, with interest expense recognised on an effective yield basis.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial Hability and of
allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated fiture cash payments through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period.

Foreign Currency Transactions

The individual financial statements of each group entity are presented in the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates (its functional currency). For the purpose of the
consolidated {inancial statements, the results and financial position of each entity are expressed in TL,
which is the functional currency of the Company, and the presentation currency for the consolidated
financial statemenis.

In preparing the financial statements of the individual entities, transactions in currencies other than TL
(foreign currencies) are recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At
the end of each reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.
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BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)

Foreign Currency Transactions (cont’d)

Exchange differences are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise except for:

. Exchange differences on foreign currency borrowings relating to assets under construction for
future productive use, which are included in the cost of those assets where they are regarded as
an adjustment to interest costs on those foreign currency borrowings;

. Exchange differences on transactions entered into in order to hedge certain foreign currency risks
(see below for hedging accounting policies); and

. Exchange differences on monetary items receivable from or payable to a foreign operation for
which settlement is neither planned nor likely to occur, which form part of the net investment in
a foreign operation, and which are recognised in the foreign currency translation reserve and
recognised in profit or loss on disposal of the net investment,

For the purpose of presenting consolidated financial statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s
foreign operations are translated inio TL using exchange rates prevailing at the end of each reporting
period. Income and expense items are translated at the average exchange rates for the period, unless
exchange rates fluctuated significantly during that period, in which case the exchange rates at the dates
of the transactions are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognized in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity.

On the disposal of a foreign operation, all of the exchange differences accumulated in other

comprehensive income under equity in respect of that operation attributable to the owners of the
Company are reclassified to profit or loss.

In addition, in relation to a partial disposal of a subsidiary that does not result in the Group losing control
over the subsidiary, the proportionate share of accumulated exchange differences are re-attributed to
non-controlling interests and are not recognized in profit or loss, For all other partial disposals, the
proportionate share of the accumulated exchange differences is reclassified to profit or loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments to identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed through
acquisition of a foreign operation are {reated as assets and liabilities of the foreign operation and
translated at the rate of exchange prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Exchange differences
arising are recognised in other comprehensive income.
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BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)

Earnings Per Share

Earnings per share disclosed in the accompanying consolidated statement of profit or loss is determined
by dividing net income by the weighted average number of shares in existence during the year
concerned,

In Turkey, companies can raise their share capital by distributing “bonus shares” to shareholders from
retained earnings. In computing earnings per share, such “bonus share”™ distributions are assessed as
issued shares. Accordingly, the retrospective effect for those share distributions is taken into
consideration in determining the weighted-average number of shares outstanding used in this
computation.

Events After the Reporting Period
Events after the reporting period are those events that occur between the balance sheet date and the date

when the financial statements are authorized for issue, even if they occur after an announcement related
with the profit for the year or public disclosure of other selected financial information.

The Group adjusts the amounts recognized in its financial statements if adjusting events occur after the

balance sheet date.
Provisions, Contingent Assets and Liabilities

Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a
past event, it is probable that the Group will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can
be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present
obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the
obligation.

When a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying
amount is the present value of those cash flows.

When some or all of the economic benefits required to seitle a provision are expected to be recovered from
a third party, the receivable is recognized as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be
received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

Segment Reporting

As the primary operation of the Group is to produce and sell electricity and as these operations have similar
economical features, production processes, customer classes and distribution methods, the Group
operations are considered to be as single operating segment. Accordingly, the Group management
considers single operating segment, rather than multiple operating segments, when making decisions on
the resources management and in the assessment of performance measurement of the operations.
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BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)

Income Tax

Turkish tax legislation does not permit a parent company and its subsidiary to file a consolidated tax
return. Therefore, provisions for taxes, as reflected in the accompanying consolidated financial
statements, have been calculated on a separate-entity basis,

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.
Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from ‘profit
before tax’ as reported in the statement of profit or loss because of items of income or expense that are
taxable or deductible in other years and 1t items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability
for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the reporting period.

Deferred rax

Deferred tax is recognized on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and labilities in the
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit, and is
accounted for using the balance sheet liability method. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized
for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are recognized for ail deductible temporary
differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those
deductible temporary differences can be utilized. Such assets and liabilities are not recognized if the
temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of other assets and [iabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for taxable temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries and associates, and inferests in joint ventures, except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in
the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences associated with
such investments and interests are only recognized to the exient that it is probable that there will be
sufficient taxable profits against which to utilize the benefits of the temporary differences and they are
expected to reverse in the foresceable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced
to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to ailow all or
part of the asset 1o be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period
in which the liability is settled or the asset realized, based on {ax rates (and {ax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. The measurement of deferred tax
liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.
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BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)
Income Fax (cont’d)

Deferred tax (cont 'd}

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority and the Group intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Crrrent and deferred tax for the period

Current and deferred tax are recognized as in profit or loss, except when they relate to items that are
recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Employee Benefits

Termination and retirement benefiis

Under Turkish law and union agreements, lump sum payments are made to employees retiring or
involuntarily leaving the Group. Such payments are considered as being past of defined retirement
benefit plan as per TAS19 (Revised) “Emplovee Benefits” (“TAS 197,

The retirement benefit obligation recognized in the conselidated balance sheet represents the present
value of the defined benefit obligation. The actuarial gains and losses are recognized in other
comprehensive income.

Statement of Cash Flows

In statement of cash flow, cash flows are classified according 1o operating, investing and financing
activities.

Cash flows from operating activities reflect cash flows generated from electricity sales of the Group.

Cash flows from investing activities express cash used in investment activities (direct investments and
financial investments) and cash flows generated from investment activities of the Group.

Cash flows relating to financing activities express sources of financial activities and payment schedules
of the Group.

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, and other short-term highly
liquid investments which their maturities are three months or less {rom date of acquisition and that are
readily convertible to a known amount of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value,
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BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)
Share Capital and Dividends

Common shares are classified as equity. Dividends on common shares are recognised in equity in the
period in which they are approved and declared.

Critical accounting judgments and key sources of estimation uncertainty

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies as outlined in Note 2.5, management has made
the following judgments that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the consolidated
financial statements:

Deferred Taxes

Deferred tax assets are only recognized when sufficient taxable profit is likely to arise in the future, In
case of a probable tax advantage, deferred tax asset is calculated over previcus year losses.

As of 31 December 2014, the Group recognized deferred income tax asset to the extent that it is probable
that future taxable profit will be available. However, the Group reduces the carrying amount of a
deferred tax asset to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available
to allow the benefit of part or all that deferred tax asset to be utilized.

Accordingly, since it is foreseen that the sufficient profit can not be sustained starting from the following
vear the Group did not recognise deferred tax assets amounting to TL 5.900.899 (31 December 2013:
TL 5.015.581) for the carry forward tax losses of Ayen Ostim amounting to TL 17.343.604 (31
December 2013: TL 12.368.460), the carry forward tax losses of Ayen Elektrik amounting to TL
10.343.452 (31 December 2013: TL 12.709.445) and the carry forward tax losses of Ayen AS amounting
to TL 2.156.583,

Group recognized T1. 15.836.491 (31 December 2013: TL 10.888.821) of deferred tax asset over Ayen
Enerji’s carry forward tax losses amounting to TL 68.873.245 (31 December 2013: TL 41.306.911) and
Aksu’s carry forward tax losses amounting to T1L. 10.309.211 (31 December 2013: TL 13.137.194) (Note
23).

Provisions

As described in the accounting policy in Note 2.5, the Group measures provisions at the Group
management’s best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the obligations at the balance sheet
date, These estimates are made, taking into account information available and different possible
outcomes.

As of 31 December 2014, the Group is subject to various legal proceedings. The Group evaluates the
possible outcomes of the lawsuits based en the Group’s legal advisers view and accounts the required
provisions against the possible gains and losses (Note 12).
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BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)

Critical accounting judgments and key sources of estimation uncertainty (cont’d)

Tmpairment of goodwill

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has been impaired, in accordance with the accounting
policies stated in Note 2.5. The recoverable amount of cash-generating unit has been determined based
on value-in-use calculations. This value-in-use calculation includes the discounted cash flow
projections. This calculation includes discounted values of the fund flow of Yamula Dam of Kayseri
Elektrik determined in USD, approved by the Ministry of Energy and Natural Resources ("MENR”) and
will be expired in 2023, In the determination of the recoverable amount, the USD calculated amount
was converted to TL. Therefore, the value-in-use is affected from the changes in foreign exchange rates.
The discount rate used in the value-in-use calculations 15 13,44% (2013: 13,44%).

The discount rate used reflects specific risks relating to Kayseri Elektrik. As of 31 December 2014, the
Group compared the recoverable amount calculated based on the aforementioned assumptions to the
total of due from service concession arrangements balance of Kayseri Elektrik amounting to TL
116.980.579 and the goodwill amounting to TL 17.461.935 and no impairment was identified

The sensitivity analysis below shows the value-in-use which would have been calculated if the discount
rate used was changed while keeping all other variables constant:

Value in use (TL)

Base discount rate by +1 137.825.286
Base discount rate () 143.419.732
Base discount rate by -1 149.372.971

Recoverable amount of Ayen AS is calculated based on discounted value of future cash flows. In the
determination of the recoverable amount, the EUR calculated amount was converted to TL. Therefore,
the value-in-use is affected from the changes in foreign exchange rates. The discount rate used in the
value-in-use calculations is 8,19% (31 December 2013: 9,99%).

The discount rate used reflects specific risks relating to Company and Albania. As of 31 December 2014,
the Group compared the 8% of recoverable amount (share of Ayel Elektrik) calculated based on the
aforementioned assumptions with 8% of the property, plant and equipment and goodwill balance of
Ayen AS amounting to TL 25.893.652 and TL 4.681.198 respectively and no impairment was identified.

The sensitivity analysis below shows the value-in-use which would have been calculated if the discount
rate used was changed while keeping all other variables constant:
Value in use (TL)

Base discount rate by +1 35.590.653
Base discount rate 0 43554938
Base discount rate by -1 54.653.760
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2.6

AYEN ENERJI A.S. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

{Amounts are expressed in Turkish Lira (TL)

BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)
Critical acconnting judgments and key sources of estimation uncertainty (cont’d)

Impairment of propertv, plant and equipment

The carrying amount of the Group’s property, plant and equipment and intangible assets are reviewed
at each balance sheet date to determine whether there are any indicators of impairment as described in
Note 2.5, If any such indications exist, the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An impairment loss
is recognised whenever the carrying amount of an asset or a cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable
amount.

In determining impairment, the Group considers a number of factors, among others, future revenues and
expenses, technological obsolescence and discontinuation of services. The Group considers that the
accounting estimate related to asset impairment is a critical accounting policy due to the need to make
assumptions regarding the above factors and the material impact of the recognition of impairment on
the financial position and results of the Group.

In that manner, as of 31 December 2014, the Group made an impairment analysis for property, plant
and equipment of Ayen Ostim. As of 31 December 2014, the recoverable amount of cash-generating
unit has been determined based on the discounted cash flow projections. The calculation of that value
includes the discounted cash flows of Ayen Ostim to be generated during the useful life of the natural
gas power plant. The discount rate used in the value-in-use calculations is 13,44% (31 December 2013:
14,34%). The discount rate used reflects specific risks relating to Ayen Ostim. As of 31 December 2014,
the Group compared the recoverable amount calculated based on the aforementioned assumptions with
the property, plant and equipment balance of Ayen Ostim amounting to TIL. 21.030.522 and no
impairment was identified for the property, plant and equipment. The sensitivily analysis below shows
the value-in-use which would have been calculated if the discount rate used was changed while keeping
all other variables constant:

Value in use (TL)
Base discount rate by +1 22.316.724
Base discount rate 0 23,196,552
Base discount rate by -1 24.133.319
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AYEN ENERJI A.S. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

(Amounts are expressed in Turkash Lira {TL)}

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (cont’d)

1 January - 31 December 2013

Sales of Interest Purchases of Purchases of
Related party transactions services Enerey sales income fixed assets services
Aydimner Insaat A.S, (%) 152,542 3.528.377 788.128 86.096.738 795988
Kayseri ve Civan Elektrik A.S. - - - - 184,225
Samsun Makina Sanavii A.S. - 27.656 - - -
Aybet Beton ALS. - 525329 - - -
Metay Insaat Sanayii ve Ticaret i } ) i 156 173
AS
Aksu Other Sharcholders - - 631103 - -
Layne Bowler Pompa Sanayi AL, 26,693 198.790 - - -

179.237 4.280.152 1.738.231 £6.096.738 1.130.586

() Purchases of fixed assets consists of progress pavment invoices issued by Avdmer Insaat to Group regarding to constructions in
progress,

Compensation of key management personnel during the period as follows

I Janunary- 1 January-

31 December 31 December

2014 2013

Salary and other short-term benefits 2.169.340 2.137.844
Other long-term benefits 157.082 113.638
2.326.422 2.251.482

TRADE RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES
a) Trade Receivables:

As at the balance sheet date, trade receivabies of the Group are summarized below:

31 December 31 December

Short-term trade receivables 2014 2013
Trade receivables (*) 20.104.373 26.963.163
Income accruals 10.680.037 18.886.665
Trade receivables from related parties (Noie 3) 67.600 307.621
Notes receivable 248.913 221.673
31.100.923 46,379.422

{*Y As of 31 December 2014 rade receivables consist of receivables from Tiirkive Elektrjk Ticaret ve Ta_ahhﬁ{
AS.(*TETAS™) amounting to TL 1.960.796 (2013: TL 6.571.638) and Tirkiye Elektrik Hetim A.S. ("TEIAS™)
amounting to TL. 6,232,537 (2013: TL 12.915,154). Remaining amount consists of trade receivables of Ayen
Elektrik from its customers.

The maturities of trade receivables are less than one month as of 31 December 2014 and 2013.

Explanations on nature and level of risks of trade receivables are disclosed in Note 26.
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AYEN ENERJI A.S. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

(Amounts are expressed in Turkish Lira (TL}}

TRADE RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES (cont’d)

b) Trade Payables:
As of balance sheet date, the details of the Group’s trade payables are as follows:

31 December

31 December

Short-term trade payables 2014 2013
Trade payables 14.696.853 32.543.620
Expense accruals 5.600.339 22.394.238
Trade payables to related parties (Note 3) 45.219.629 82.840.693
Other trade payables (*) 13.799.951 4.087.93

79.316.772 141.866.502

(*} Asof3] December 2014, TL 12.243.372 of trade payables are related to the investments made for Ayen AS.

The maturities of trade payables are less than one month as of 31 December 2014 and 2013,

OTHER RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES
31 December

31 December

Other Short-Term Receivables 2014 2013
Deposits and guarantees given 472,704 1.420.119
Receivables from transmission lines (*) 847.275 .
Non-trade receivables from related parties (Note 3) - 1.470
Other receivables 23.439 146.111

1.343.418 1.567.700

31 December

31 DPecember

Other Long-Term Receivables 2014 2013
Deposits and guarantees given 374.088 351.135
Receivables from transmission lines (*) 4,806,352 -

5.180.440 351.135

(*) As of 31 December 2014, the balance consists of the costs regarding Biiyiikdiiz, Korkmaz, Mordogian and
Aksu transmission lines constructed for TEIAS which are structured with & payment plan and therefore these

costs are classified as other receivables in 2014,

31 December

31 December

Other Short-Term Pavables 2014 2013
Deposits and guarantees received 638,702 1.468.250
Non-trade payables to related parties (Note 3) 58.573.371 206.361.327
Other payables 309.724 296.886

59.321.797 28.126.463
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AYEN ENERJI A.S. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

{Amounts are expressed in Turkish Lira (TL)

PREPAID EXPENSES AND DEFERRED INCOME

31 December

31 December

Short-Term Prepaid Expenses 2014 2013
Prepaid expenses 1.649.574 1.968.179
Deferred finance charges (**) 2.216.699 1.841.037
Advances given for business purposes 183.841 362.765
Other 86.585 847.607
4.136.999 5.019.588

31 December 31 December

Long-Term Prepaid Expenses 2014 2013
Deferred finance charges (**) 21.061.630 23.918.652
Transmission line charges(*) - 11.092.261
Advances given 13.892.581] 5.877.512
Other 175.412 122,793
35.129.643 41.011.218

(*)  The balance consists of the costs regarding the Bilyiikdiiz, Mordogan, Korkmaz and Aksu transmission
lines constructed for TEIAS, which are considered as prepaid expenses of switching station. As of 31
December 2014, related balance is structured with a payment plan and then classified to other expenses.

{**)  The movement of deferred finance charges are given in the following page.

I January- I January-

31 December 31 Decenber

The movement for the deferred finance charge is as follows: 2014 2013
Opening balance 25.755.689 24.547.727
Current period capitalization (109.730) 3.970.715
Cuarrent period amortization {2.371.610) (2.758.7533)
23.278.349 25.759.689

31 December

21 December

Short-Term Deferred Income 2014 2013
Advances received (%) 1.972.617 5.305.548
Short-term deferred income - 30.139

1.972.617 3.335.707

(*)  Advances received arising from the sales performed to the Day-Ahead Market system,
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AYEN ENERJI A.S. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

[Amounts are expressed in Turkish Lira (TLY

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (cont’d)

Depreciation expense of TL 27.824.775 (31 December 2013: TL 23.846.138) has been charged in cost
of sales and TL 392.409 (31 December 2013: TL 381.581) has been charged in general administrative

expenses.

As of 31 December 2014 there are mortgages over the tangible assets of the Group for the borrowings
obtained amounting to TL 11.594.399 (USD 5.000.000) (Note 12) (31 December 2013: USD
45.000.000 (TL 96.043.500). There are commercial enterprise pledges amounting to TL 140.000.000
over Akbilk WPP and amounting to TL 150.000.000 over Mordogan WPP and Korkmaz WPP.
Aforementioned pledges were given on 25 June 2009 and on 30 May 2012 as a guarantee for the
invesiment loan obtained for Akbitk WPP and Mordogan WPP and Korkmaz WPP respectively (Note

123.
INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Electricity Other

Wholesale Production Intangible
Cost Licence Licence Rights Assets Total
Opening balance as at I January 2014 334774 15.099.520 1.812.562 5.590.604  22.846.460
Additions - 275.000 68.946 899.030 442.976
Closing balance as at 31 December
2014 334774 15.374.520 1.881.508 3.698.634 23280436
Accumulated Amortization
Opening balance as at 1 January 2014 {(315.816) (400.031) {679.990) (1.644.165)  (3.040.002)
Charge for the period {8.071) {159.493) {340.941) (377.773) (886.278)
Ciosing balance as at 31 December
2014 (323.887) (559.524) {1.020.931) (2.021.938)  (3.926.280)
Net book value as at 31 December
2014 10.887 14,814,996 8§60.577 3.676.696  19.363.156
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AYEN ENERJI A.S. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

{Amousts are expressed in Turkish Lim ¢TLY)

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (cont’d)

Electricity Other
Wholesale Praduction Intangible
Cost Licence Licence Riphits Assets Total
Opening balance as at 1 January 2013 320.874 15.099.520 1.729.456 5.599.604 22.149.454
Additions 13.900 - 83.106 - 97.006
Closing balance as at 31 December 2013 334,774 15.099.520 1.812.562 5.599.604 22,846,460
Accumulated Amortization
Opening balance as at 1 January 2013 (283.525) (261.163) (346.127)  (1.275.467) {2.166.282)
Charge for the pericd {32,291 (138.868) (333.863) {368.698) (873.720)
Closing balance as at 31 December 2013 {315,816} (400.031) (679.990)  (1.644.165)  (3.040.002)
Net book value as at 31 December 2013 18.958 14,699 489 1.132.572 3.955.439 19.806.458

Amortization expense of TL 8§30.372 (31 December 2013: TL 859.622) has been charged in cost of
sales and TL 35.906 (31 December 2013: TL 14.098) has been charged in general administrative
expenses.

GOODWILL

The difference between Ayen Enerji’s interest in the net fair value of the acquired identifiable assets
due to the acquisition of Demir Enerji in 2002, who was the shareholder of Kayseri Elekirik and the
acquisition price has been considered as goodwill. Ayen Enerji has merged with Demir Enerji on the
basis of its balance sheet as of 30 June 2008. As described in Note 2.6 1o the consolidated financial
statements, as a result of the impairment test carried out at 31 December 2014 and 2013 no impairment
was identified in the carrying amount of goodwill amounting to TL 17.461.935.

Ayel Elektrik has acquired 8% shares of Ayen-AS Energy’s shares whose book value is TL 178.002
(ALL 11.000.000) from AS Energy S.H.P.K. in 2011 amounting to TL 4.859.200. Exceeding amount
of the book value of the acquired shares which is TL 4.681.198 has been recognised as goodwill on
the consolidaied financial statements. As described in Note 2.6 to the consolidated financial
statements, as a result of the impairment test carried out at 31 December 2014, no impairment was
identified in the carrying amount of goodwill.
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AYEN ENERJI A.S. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

{Amounts are expressed in Turkish Lira (TL}}

SERVICE CONCESSION ARRANGEMENTS

31 December

31 December

Due from Service Concession Arrangements 2014 2013
Short-term due from service concession arrangements 22.730.057 30.653.471
Invoiced and undue from service concession

arrangements (%) 3.883.075 12.235.929
Unbilled short-term due from service concession

arrangements related to the shortage in production (%) - 1.218.940
Total short-term due from service concession arrangements 26.613.132 44.108.340
Long-term due from service concession arrangements 90.367.450 104.094.187
Total long-term due from service concession arrangements 00.367.450 164.094.187
Total due from service concession arrangements 116.980.582 148.202.527
Gross due from service concession arrangements 211.229.710 244,444,905

Unearned financial income (-)

Due from service concession arrangements

Due from service concession arrangements-net

(*}  Consists of the receivables invoiced to TETAS but not collected yet.

(98.132.203)

3.883.075

(109.697.247)

13.454.869

116.980.582

148.202.527

(**}  As of 31 December 2013, the balace consists of the equity and the return on equity portions of unbitled
income of Camhca HEPP for the years 2000, 2001, 2003, 2006, 2007, 2012 and 2013. Transfer of Camlica

HEPP has been completed and no uncollected receivables exist,
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AYEN ENERJI A.S. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

(Amounts are expressed in Turkish Lira (TL)

SERVICE CONCESSION ARRANGEMENTS (cont’d)

As of 31 December 2014 and 31 December 2013, the payment schedules fo.r gross and net due from

service concession arrangements are as follows:

Upto ! year

1 to 2 vears

2 to 3 years

3 to 4 years

More than 4 years

Upto 1 year

1 10 2 years

2 {0 3 years

3 t0 4 years

More than 4 vears

Gross due from service

concession arrangements (USD)

Gross due from service

concession arrangements (TL)

31 December

31 December

31 December

31 December

2014 2013 2014 2013
16.815.620 23.441.174 38.993.741 50.030.498
7.750.420 16.815.620 17.972.449 ©35.889.578
7.750.420 7.750.420 17.972.449 16.541.721
7.750.420 7.750.420 17.972.449 16.541.721
51.023.598 58.774.018 118.318.622 125.441.387
91.090.478 114.531.652 211.229.710 244.444.905

Net due from service
concession arrangements (USD)

Net due from service
concession arrangements (TL)

31 December

31 December

31 December

31 December

2014 2013 2014 2013
9.802.086 14.362.307 22.730.057 30.653.471
2.130.038 9.802.086 4.939.345 20.920.592
2.452.753 2.130.038 5.687.689 4.546.140
2.805.465 2.452.753 6.505.593 5.234.911

31.581.708 34.387.173 73.234.823 73.392.544
48.772.050 63.134.357 113.097.507 134.747.658

Due from service concession arrangements consist of receivables over the terms of the agreements. In
accordance with the Energy Sales Agreement, the ownership of Camlica and Yamuia HEEPs and the

electricity equipments will be transferred to the MENR at the end of the operation terms.
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~ AYEN ENERJI A.S. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

{Amounts are expressed in Turkish Lira {TL))

BORROWING COSTS

According to TAS 23, the borrowing costs of Group regarding the loans used for the qualifying assets
investments which are interest expenses amounting TL 13.467.493 have been capitalized over
property, plant and equipment in 2014, In 2013, the borrowing costs of the Group regarding the
investment loans amounting TL 5.408.507 have been capitalized over property, plant and equipment
{Note 7).

PROVISIONS, CONTINGENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
a) Provisions

As of 31 December 2014, there are 1 case where the Group is litigant and 6 cases where the Group is
defendant. Most of the cases are related with the bad debt and employee cases. At the end of each
period, the Group evaluates the potential results of these cases and their financial effects and books a
provision accordingly. As of 31 December 2014, there is no provision accounted for the law suits (31
December 2013: None).

b) Contingent Assets and Liabilities
31 December 31 December

Contingent assets 2014 2013
Letters of guarantee received (*) 20.094.684 23.714.418
Guarantee received {*%) 592.162.355 694,476,336

612.257.039 718.190.754

(*) Recetved by Ayen Elektrik as guarantee against risks that might occur in collecting related with electricity sales.

(**y  Consists of Avdiner Ingaat A.5.'s guarantee ebtained regarding cash and non-cash General Loan Agreements signed
by the Group with banks,

The commitments and contingent liabilities of the Group that are not expected to result in material loss
or liability is summarized as follows:

31 December 31 December

Contingent Liabilities 2014 2013
Letters of conveyance given (¥) 560.956.024 574.773.632

{*) Regarding the “Royalty agreement of the establishiment and operation of Yamula Dam and HEPP and sale of the
produced electricity 1o TETAS™ and the “Energy sales agreement for Yamufa Dam and HEPP” signed with MENR
on 7 July 2003 Kayser: Elektrik gave its receivable of USD 119,658,318 (31 December 2013: USD 131.030.025) as
a conveyance for the foan. However, these conveyances will be effective if payiment schedules of the loans have not
been met. Moreover, there exists EURO 100.500.000 {TL 283.480.350, 31 December 2013: USD 160.500.000) of
conveyance over receivables of Aksu Temiz Enerpy as of 31 December 2014 (Note 25).
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AYEN ENERJI A.S. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

{ Amounts are expressed in Turkish Lira (TLY)

12.  PROVISIONS, CONTINGENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (cont’d)

b} Contingent Assets and Liabilities (cont’d)

31 December 31 December
Contingent Liabilities 2014 2013
Commercial enterprise pledge {**) 290.000.000 290.000.000

(**)  The Group has given commercial enterprise pledge amounting to TL 146,000,000 as a guarantee for the loan used
for construction of Akbik WPP, on 23 June 200% and TL 150.000.600 as a guarantee for the Joan vsed for Mordogan
WPP and Korkmaz WPDP on 30 May 2012 (Note 23).

31 December 31 December
Contingent Liabilities 2014 213
Mortgages given (**%) 11.594.500 96.043.500

(***y  Consisis of the mortages given for the long-term borrowings of the Group, there exists TL 11.394.30¢ (USD
5.000.600) of morigages over property, plant and equipment {Note 23).

31 December 31 December
Contingent Liabilities 2014 2013
Letters of guarantee given (**%%) 95.305.195 124.963.599

(*#*xy [ etters of guarantee given consist of TL 43.615.861 in terms of USD, TL 2.059.111 in terms of EURQ and TL
49.630.223 in terms of Turkish Lira. Letters of guarantee given comprises that TL 13,941,301 (USD 6.874.51()
has been given to the Albania Ministry of Economy for Ayen-AS, TL 1.665.202 (USD 718.100) has been given 1o
General Directorate of Mineral Research and Exploration, TL 7.07%.000 has been given to MENR, TL. 2.000.000
has been given to TEIAS for Akbiik 11 plant and TL 39.951.223 given to electricity distribution companies as
assurance pay for the payable arising due to the electiricity purchases by Group. In addition to these, TL 5.962.467
(USD 2.571.248) are the letters of gurantee given as a guarantee for the long-term borrowings obtained for the
investment activities of the Group. TL 20.046.891 (USD 8.645.000) is a letter of guarantee given in accordance
with the concession agreement for the transfer of Camlica HEPP in working condition and as it is stated in Note
28, the letter bas been withdrawed as of January 2015, In addition to these, TL 282,070 (EURO 100.000) has been
given 1 TEIAS related with the purchase and sale of the electricity and TL 1,777,041 (EURO 630.000) are given
as a guarantee for the subsidiaries in overseas to continue international electricity transactions,

31 December 31 December
Contingent Liabilities 2014 2013
Guarantee given (F#+%¥) 235.364.900 265.043.100

{¥***#y Consists of TL 46.378.000 (USD 20.600.000) guarantee given to s Bank for the borrowing used and TL
188.986.900 (EURO 67.000.000) is due to the joint quarantee for the loan obtained by Aksu Temiz Enerji from
TSKEB..
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AYEN ENERJI A.S. AND I'TS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

{Amounts are expressed in Turkish Lira (TL))

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Payables related to employee benefits

31 December

31 December

2014 2013

Social security premiums payable 385.088 333.247
Due to personnel 4.683 246,152
389,771 579.399

Short-term provisions for employee benefits:

31 December

31 December

2014 2013
Provision for unused vacation 606.919 388.973
606.919 388.973

The movement for provisions is as follows:

Provision for

unused

vacation

As of 1 January 2014 388.973
Period Charge 217.946
As of 31 December 2014 606.919

Provision for

unused

vacation

As of 1 January 2013 431.673
Cancelled provision (42.700)
As of 1 Janvary 2013 388973

Long-term provisions for emplovee benefits

Under Turkish Labor Law, the Group is required to pay termination benefits to each employee who has
completed certain years of service and whose employment is ferminated without due cause, is called up
for military service, dies or achieves the retirement age (58 for women and 60 for men).

The amount payable consists of one month’s salary limited to a maximum of TL 3.541,37 (2013: TL
3.438,22) for each period of service at 31 December 2014.
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AYEN ENERJI A.S. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

{Amounts are expressed in Turkish Lim (FL)

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (cont’d)

Retirement pay liability is not subject to any kind of funding legally. Provision for retirement pay liability
is calculated by estimating the present value of probable liability amount arising due to retirement of
employees. TAS 19 Employee Benefits stipulates the development of company’s liabilities by using
actuarial valuation methods under defined benefit plans. In this direction, actuarial assumptions used in
calculation of total liabilities are described as follows:

The principal assumption is that the maximum liability for each year of service will increase parallel with
inflation. Thus, the discount rate applied represents the expected real rate after adjusting for the anticipated
effects of future inflation. Consequently, in the accompanying financial statements as at 31 December 2014,
the provision has been calculated by estimating the present value of the future probable obligation of the
Company arsing from the retirement of the employees. The provisions at the respective balance sheet dates
have been calculated with the assumption of an annual inflation rate of 6,49% and a discount rate of 8,55%,
resulting in a real discount rate of approximately 1,93% (31 December 2013: discount rate of approximately
3.74%). Estimated amount of retirement pay not paid due to voluntary leaves and retained in the
Company is also taken into consideration. Ceilig for retirement pay is revised semi-annually. Ceiling
amount of TL 3.541,37 which is in effect since 1 January 2015 is used in the calculation of Group’s
provision for retirement pay liability.

The principal assumptions used in the caleulation of retirement pay liability are discount rate and anticipated
turnover rate,

e  Ifthe discount rate had been 1% lower/(higher), provision for employee termination benefiis would
increase/{decrease) by TL 290.155,

s If the anticipated turnover rate had been 1% higher/(lower) while all other variables were held
constant, provision for employee termination benefits would decrease/(increase) by TL 256.946.

1 January- 1 January -

31 December 31 December

2014 2013

Provision at January 1 1.425.280 1.623.543
Service cost 375.035 147.588
Interest cost 31.854 56.318
Actuarial gain / loss 458,077 {154.182)
Termination benefits paid (237.001) {(217.987)
Provision at December 31 2.054.245 1,425,280

i
1]
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AYEN ENERJI A.S. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

{Amounts are expressed in Twrkish Lira (TL)

EXPENSES BY NATURE

1 January - 1 January -
31 December 31 December
2014 2013
Cost of electricity {(¥%) 90.469.610 243.893.132
Cost of natural gas 26.722.024 18.762.143
Depreciation and amortization expenses 29.103.462 25.101.439
Personnel expenses (*) 13.207.145 11.877.664
Plant technical assistance and maintenance 8.628.110 4.472.921
System usage fee (**%) 4.001.924 4.314.124
Transportation expenses 1.022.488 1.468.934
Office expenses 671.283 991.764
Consultancy fees 2.023.503 1.944.101
Insurance expenses 1.108.730 1.127.560
Taxes and duties 372.410 390.068
Contribution fees 1.325.366 599.97¢6
Other 3.728.898 2.683.138
182.384.953 317.626.964

{*) Persennel expenses of TL 7.304.541 (31 December 2013; TL 7.240.372) has been charged in cost of sales; TL

&)

(***)

5.902.604 {31 December 2013: TL 4,637.292} has been charged in general administrative expenses.

Consists of the cost of electricity that Ayen Ostim, Ayen Enerji ve Ayen Elektrik purchased from suppliers other than

TEIAS and Group Companies.

TEIAS charges system usage fees Lo the Group and the Group reflects the same amount fo TETAS and 1o other
customers, The amounts that could be reflected to the custemers and TETAS are netied off 1n the accompanying
consolidated financial statements, however, the amounts that could not be reflected and paid by the Group are accounted

for as cost of sales.

OTHER ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

31 December

Other Current Assets 2614 2013
VAT carried forward 1.136.347 1.596.095
Restricted deposit {*) - 12,773,775
Other _ 36.825 8.964
1173.172 14.378.834

*) Balance comprised of the restricted amount held in Commerzbank in order to use in the construction siages of Mordogan

31 December

WPP and Korkmaz WPP by Suzlon Wind which is closed as of 31 December 2014,

31 December

31 December

Other Non-Current Assets 2014 2013
VAT carried forward (*) 50.805.838 22.934.100
22.934.100

™*

50.808. 838

Balance comprised of the VAT camied forward amount of the Ayen AS which in investment phase.
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AYEN ENERJI A.S. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

(Amounts are expressed in Turkish Lira {¥1))

SHARE CAPITAL, RESERVES AND OTHER EQUITY ITEMS

The Company is not subject to registered capital system. The approved and issued capital of the
Company consists of 17.104.230.000 shares (31 December 2013: 17.104.230.000) with TL 0,01 nominal
price each. The amount of 9.729.720.000 are nominative group (A} shares, 2.567.565.000 shares are
publicly traded group (B} shares and bearer 4.806.945.000 shares to the bearer are non-public registered
shares.The mentioned capital is fully paid.

The composition of the Company’s paid-in share capital as of 31 December 2014 and 31 December
2013 is as follows:

31 December 31 December
Shareholders Yo 2014 Y% 2013
Aydmer insaat A.S. 84,98 145.347.710 84,98 145.347.710
Public quotation 15,01 25.675.650 15,01 25.675.650
Other <l 18.940 <] 18.940
Subscribed capital 171.042.300 171.042.300

The operations of the Company are managed by the Board of Directors with at least 7 {seven) members
that consist 5 (five) A type shareholders determined in the General Assembly in accordance with the
Turkish Commercial Code. Each (A) type shareholders have 15 voting rights in Ordinary and
Extraordinary General Assemblies.

Restricted profit reserves and retained earnings

The legal reserves consist of first and second legal reserves, appropriated in accordance with the Turkish
Commercial Code. The first legal reserve is appropriated out of historical statutory profits at the rate of
5% per annum, until the total reserve reaches 20% of the historical paid-in share capital. The second
legal reserve is appropriated after the first legal reserve and dividends, at the rate of 10% per annum of
all cash dividend distributions. As of 31 December 2014, the amount of restricted profit reserves is TL
56.068.938 (31 December 2013: TL 51.589.982).

Besides, in Kayseri Elekirik General Assembly which was hold on 12 April 2014, it was decided to
appropriate amounting to TL 4.486.692 of reserve out of Company’s profit for the year 2014,

Resources Available for Profir Distribution

As of balance sheet date, period loss of the Group is TL 3.897.234 and retained earnings is TL
27.421.467 according to the statutory records. Total profit available for distribution resources afier
deducting period loss from retained earnings is TL. 21.524.231 (31 December 2013: T1. 27.421.467),

wh
I
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AYEN ENERJI A.S. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

{Amounis are expressed in Turkish Lira (TL))

REVENUE AND COST OF SALES

I January - 1 January -

31 December 31 December

14 2013

Electricity sales 209.543.630 343.623.419
Interest income from service concession arrangements 20.417.251 25.299.890
Revenue 229.960.881 368.923.309
Cost of sales {172.144.829) {309.350.074)
Gross Profit 57.816.052 59,573,235

During the year, TL 27.419.940 (2013: TL 51.774.816) of invoices issued to TETAS related to the
Service Concession Arrangements, which is stated in Note 2.5, have been deducted from Service

Concession Receivables.

OTHER INCOME AND EXPENSES FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

The details of other income from operating activities for the years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013

are as follows:

1 Jamuary - 1 January -

31 December 31 December

2014 2013

Foreign exchange gain arising from operating activities 4.427.412 4.409.890
Akbiik WPP wing damage fee (*) 313.504 996.351
Discount income of trade payables 1.753.002 573.162
Other 1.161.046 639.321
7.654.964 6.618.724

(*}  Income arising from the loss settlement amount due to the damage occured at the wing of Akbitk WPP

wind turbine.
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AYEN ENERJI A.S. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

{Amounts are expressed in Turkish Lira (TL))

OTHER INCOME AND EXPENSES FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES (cont’d)

The details of other expenses from operating activities for the years ended 21 December 2014 and 2013

are as Tollows:

1 January - ! January -
31 December 31 December

2014 2013
Foreign exchange losses arising from operating activities (3.823.061) (4.611.128)
Discount expenses of receivables(*) (3.156.942) (107.959)
Kizilcahamam forest expense (¥%) (119.491) (119.891)
Donations (¥+%) (523.100) -
Transformer station expenses that are not reflected (*+*%) (504.423%) -
Premium payment made to turbine suppliers (¥%%+%) (437.668) -
Other (793.283) (417.108)
(9.357.970) (5.256.086)

(¥} The amount of TL 2.937.393 is the discount expense of TEIAS receivables, related to transmission lines

which are restructured with payment plan.

(**} This comprises the forestation and improvement expenses of the 1.505 decares of Kizilcahamam forest.
This forest has been allocated to the Group for forestation works by the Kizileahamam Forest Business

Directorate unti] 2046,
(***)  The balance is related with the donations made to Kayser: Ercives University.

(**%**) The balance is related with the estimated cost of transmission line which sustains connection of Akbitk

WPP to TEIAS transformer station is returned by TEIAS.

(***¥%) The amount is the premium paymeni made since “Waiting period while working” {Availability) amount

stated in the agreement is higher than expecied.

INCOME AND EXPENSES FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

The details of other income from investing activities for the years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013

are as follows:

1 January - 1 January -

31 December 31 December

2014 2013

Interest income 2.439,437 2.444 871
FForeign exchange gains 9.753.388 24.716.123
Gain on sale of fixed assets 17.421 179.237
Other 54,325 -
12.264.571 27.340.231

The details of other expenses from investing activities for the years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013

are as {ollows:
i January -
31 December
2014

1 January -

31 December
2013

Foreign exchange losses -
1.0ss on sale of fixed assets -

(257.452)
(18.838)

(276.290)




AYEN ENERJI A.S. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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{Amounls are expressed in Turkish Lira (TLY)

21.  FINANCE EXPENSES

Net {oreign exchange (loss) / income
Bank loan interests

Deferred finance expenses

Other finance expenses

1 January - I January -
31 December 31 December
2014 2013
14.442.372 {116.676.462)
(29.353.910) (23.393.386)
(2.371.610) {2.758.753)
(1.563.766) (1.544.260)

(18.846.914)

(144.372.861)

22,  ANALYSIS OF OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME ITEMS

Foreign currency translation reserve

Balance at the beginning of period

Foreign exchange differences arising from the
transiation of net assets of the business abroad

Balance at the end of period

Remeasurement of defined benefit plans income/(losses)

Balance at the beginning of period
Remeasurement income/(losses) from defined benefit plans

Balance at the end of period

I January - i January -
31 December 31 December
2014 2013
8.445.989 85.991]
(5.034.670) 8.350.998
3.411.319 8.445.989

1 January - I January -
31 December 31 December
2014 2013
(89.307) (236.651)
(367.261) 147.344
(456.568) {89.307)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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INCOME TAXES (INCLUDING DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES)

Short-term Assets related to current rax:

Prepaid taxes and dues

Short-term Pavables related to current fax:

Taxes and funds payable

Current tax labilire:

Current tax liability provision
Less: Prepaid taxes and dues

Tax expense in profit or loss statement:

31 December

31 December

2014 2013
218.160 184.206
218.160 184.206

31 December

31 December

2014 2013
1.741.250 2.500.763
1.741.250 2.500.763

31 December

31 December

Income tax expense consists of the following:

Current tax expense

Deferred tax (expense)/income related with the
formation of temporary differences with the
dissolution of temporary differences

Total tax expense / income

Tax recognized directly in equity

Deffered Tax
Recorded directly to equity
Actuarial gain or loss

Total deferred tax recognized directly in equity

38

2014 2013
10.108.726 7.554.708
10.108.726 7.554.708
1 January - 1 January -

31 December 31 December
2014 2013
{10.108.726) {7.554.708)
771.668 17.737.092
{9.337.058) 10.182.384

I Janwary - 1 January -
31 December 31 December
2014 213

91,816 (36.838)
91.816 (36.838)




AYEN ENERJI A.S. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

{Amounts are expressed in Turkish Lira {TL)

INCOME TAXES (INCLUDING DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES) (cont’d)

Tax effect related to the components of other comprehensive income is as follows:
1 January-31 December 2014

Amount Tax expense Amount after

before tax {/ income tax
Actuarial gains and losses on defined benefit plans {459.077) 91.518 {367.261)
{459.077) 91.816 {367.261)

I January-31 December 2013

Amount Tax expense Amount afier
before tax / income tax

Actuarial gains and losses on defined benefit plans 184.182 (36.838) 147.344

184.182 (36.838) - 147.344

Corporate Tax

The Company and its subsidiaries in Turkey is subject to Turkish corporate taxes. Ayen AS and Ayen
Trading, recorded in Albania, is subject to tax legislation in Albania. Ayen Slovenia and Ayen Serbia,
recorded in Slovenia and Serbia, are subject to tax legislations in Slovenia and Serbia respectively.
Provision is made in the accompanying financial statements for the estimated charge based on the
Group’s results for the years and periods. Turkish tax legisiation does not permit a parent company and
its subsidiary to file a consolidated tax return. Therefore, provisions for taxes, as reflected in the
accompanying consolidated financial statements, have been calculated on a separate-entity basis.

Corporate tax is applied on taxable corporate income, which is calculated from the statutory accounting
profit by adding back nen-deductible expenses, and deducting exempt income, non-taxable income and
other incentives (previous years losses, if any, and investment incentives utilized, if preferred).

The effective tax rate in 2014 is 20% (2013: 20%).

In Turkey, advance tax returns are filed on a quarterly basis. Advance corporate income tax rate applied
in 2014 is 20%. (2013: 20%). L.osses can be carried forward for offset against future taxable income for
up to 3 years. However, losses cannot be carried back for offset against profits from previous periods.

Furthermore, there is no procedure for a final and definitive agreement on {ax assessments. Companies
file their tax returns between 1-25 April following the close of the accounting year to which they relate,
Tax authorities may, however, examine such returns and the underlying accounting records and may
revise assessments within five years.



AYEN ENERJI A.S. AND I'TS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

(Amounts are expressed in Turkish Lira (TE})

INCOME TAXES (INCLUDING DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES) (cont*d)

Income Witholdine Tax

In addition to corporate taxes, companies should also calculate income withholding taxes and funds
surcharge on any dividends distributed, except for companies receiving dividends who are Turkish
residents and Turkish branches of foreign companies. Income withholding tax applied in between 24
April 2003 - 22 July 2006 is 10% and commencing from 22 July 2006, this rate has been changed to
15% upon the Council of Minister’s’ Resolution No: 2006/10731. Undistributed dividends incorporated
in share capital are not subject to income withholding tax.

Withholding tax at the rate of 19.8% is still applied to investment allowances relating to investment
incentive certificates obtained prior to 24 April 2003. Subsequent to this date, the investments without
investment incentive certificates do not qualify for tax allowance.

Dvestment Incenrives

The revoked phrase “only attributable to 2006, 2007 and 2008™ stated in Provisional Article 69 of
Income Tax Law No:193 with the effect of Article 5 of Law No:6009 afier having published in the
Official Gazette No: 27659 as at 1 August 2010 and the Constitutional Court’s issued resolution no:
2009/144 published in the Official Gazette as at 8 January 2010 has been revised. The revised regulation
allows companies to continue to benefit from the exception of undeductible and carryforward investment
incentive due to insufficient earnings irrespective of having any time constraints. However, deductible
amount for investment incentive exception used in the determination of tax base cannot exceed 25% of
the related period’s income. In addition, companies that opt to use the investment incentive exemption
are allowed to apply 20% of income tax, instead of 30% under the related revised regulation.

The additional paragraph to Provisional Article 69 included in accordance with Law No:6009, which is
related to the 25% threshold and requires the incentive amount that will be subject to investment
incentive exemption in determining tax base cannot exceed 25% of the respective income, has been
revoked based on the ground that it is contrary to the Constitution upon the Constitutional Court’s
resolution No: E. 2010/93 K. 2012/20 (“stay of execution”) issued on 9 February 2012 and published in
the Official Gazette No: 28208 on 18 February 2012, The related Constitutional Court’s decision was
published in the official Gazetie No: 28719 as at 26 July 2013,

Degerred fax;

The Group recognizes deferred tax assets and liabilities based upon temporary differences arising between
its financial statements as reported for TFRS purposes and its statutory tax financial statements. These
differences usually result in the recognition of revenue and expenses in different reporting periods for
TFRS and tax purposes and they are given below.

For calculation of deferred tax asset and liabilities, the rate of 20% (2013: 20%) is used.
Companies in Turkey can not declare a consolidated tax return, therefore subsidiaries that have deferred

tax assets position were not netted off against subsidiaries that have deferred tax labilities position and
disclosed seperately.
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AYEN ENERJI A.S. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

(Amounts are expressed in Turkish Lira (TL))

INCOME TAXES (INCLUDING DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES) (cont’d)

Deferred tax fcont'd) .

Temporary differences

Deferred tax assests/ (liabilities)

et 31 Decembe
Deferred tax assests/ (liabilities) i iber

31 December

31 December

31 December

2014 2013 2014 2013
Property, plant and equipment
and intangible assets 146.099.630 204.220.280 29.219.926 40.844.056
Investment incentives 102.033.000 153.087.000 204.066 306.174
Carry forward tax losses 79.182.456 54.444.105 15.836.491 10.888.821
Provision for employment termination
benefits 2.054.245 1.425.280 410.849 285.036
Due from service concession
arrangements (116.269.135)  (141.672.560) {23.233.827) (28.334.512)
Deferred finance charges (765.835) (11.817.325) (153.167) (2.363.463)
Other 2.691.059 1.564.680 538.212 312.936
215.025.420 261.251.460 22.802.550 21.939.066

The Group reduces the carrying amount of a deferred tax asset to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profit will be available to aliow the benefit of part or all that deferred income tax
asset to be utilized. Accordingly, Group did not recognise deferred tax assets amounting to TL 5.900.899
(31 December 2013: TL5.015.581) for the carry forward tax losses of Ayen Ostim amounting to TL
17.5343.604 (31 December 2013: TL 12.368.460) that of Ayen Elektrik amounting to T1. 10,343,452 (31§
December 2013: TL 12.709.445) and that of Ayen AS amounting to TL 2,156.383.

As of 31 December 2014 and 31 December 2013, the expiration dates of prior years' losses, which
deferred tax asset have not been accounted {or, are as {oliows:

2015
2016
2017
2018
2019

Closing balance at 31 December

31 December

31 December

2014 2013
559.726 -
4,335,401 6.164.209
6.259.526 5.199.044
13.713.752 13.713.752
5.175.144 -
30.043.639 25.077.905

Group recognized TL 15.836.491 (31 December 2013: TL. 10.888.821) of deferred tax asset over Ayen
Enerji’s and Aksu’s carry forward tax losses amounting to TL 68.873.245 {31 December 2013: TL
41.306.911) and TL 10.309.211 (31 December 2013: TL 13.137.194) respectively.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014
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INCOME TAXES (INCLUDING DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES) (cont’d)

Deferred Tax (coni'd):

As of 31 December 2014 and 31 December 2013, the expiration dates of prior years' losses, which
deferred tax asset have been accounted for, are as follows:

31 December 31 December

2014 2013

2015 9.048.663 9.048.663

2017 10.309.251 13.137.194

2018 30.029.650 32.258.246

2019 29,794,890 -

Closing balance at 31 December 79.182.456 54,444,105
* Movements in deferred income taxes can be analysed as follows:

1 January - 1 January -

31 December 31 December

2014 2013

Opening balance at 1 January 21.939.066 4,238,812

Current year deferred taxation expense 771.668 17.737.092

Actuarial gain / (loss}) effect directly recorded to equity: 91.816 (36.838)

Closing balance at 31 December 22 802,550 21.939.066

The reconciliation of current year tax charge calculated over current period tax charge and profit before
tax disclosed in the consolidated statement of profit or loss for the period ended 31 December 2014 and
2013 is stated below:

I January - 1 January -

31 December 31 December

2014 2013

Profit / (loss) before tax on profit or loss statement 39,290,579 (64.649.937)

Effective tax rate (20%) (2013: 20%) (7.858.116) 12.929.987
Effect of tax:

-revenue that is exempt from taxation 47.400 248.950

-non-deductibie expenses (66.754) {39.385)

-effect of non-taxable consolidation adjustment 3.257 89.082

-gffect of subsidiaries in loss {1.462.8435) (3.046.050)

Tax expense on profit or {oss statement (9.337.058) 10.182.384
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24. EARNINGS PER SHARE

Profit/ (loss) for the year attributable to equity

1 January - 1 January -
31 December 31 December
2014 2013
26.838.259 (48.846.437)

holders of the Parent
Average number of outstanding shares
Earnings/ (loss) per basic, 1.000 shares (TL)
25. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Other Financial Liabilities

17.104.230.000

1,57

31 December

17.104.230.060

(2,86)

31 December

Other Short-Term Finaneial Liabilities 2014 2013
Camlica HEPP Electric Energy Fund (%) - 1.528.052
Forestation Fund 18.064 -
18.064 1.528.052

") The balance is related with the EEF loans as of 31 December 2013 and it is closed with the transfer of

Camlica HEPP.

31 December

31 December

Other Long-Term Financial Liabilities 2014 2013
Forestation Fund - 22,722
Bonds Issued (*) 70.175.251 -
70.175.251 227722

(**)  Bonds with 24 months maturity; with quarterly coupon payment and with variable interests and capital

payment at the end of the maturity as nominal amount of TL 70.000.000 is issued by the Group as of 24

December 2014,

Financial Liabilities

The detail of borrowings of the Group as of 31 December 2014 and 31 December 2013 is as follows:

31 December

31 December

Borrowings 2014 2013
Short-term financial borrowings 61.296.610 46.441.613
Short-term portion of long-term borrowings 92.865.188 95.775.147
Long-term financial borrowings 775.021.665 592.328.564

929.183.463 734.545.324

The accrued interest expense on short-term borrowings is TL 7.276.678 (31 December 2013: TL

3.442.807).
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{Amounts are expressed in Turkish Lira {TL})

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (cont’d)

The detail of borrowings is as follows:

Weighted average 31 December 2014
effective interest
Oniginal Currency rate (%) Short-term Long-term
TL 12,04% 49.701.816 -
ush 5,88% 38.091.767 24.348.455
EURO 4,06% 66.368.215 750.673.210
154.161.798 775.021.665
Weighted average 31 December 2013
effective interest
Original Currency rate (%) Short-term Long-term
TL 9.55% 46.441.613 -
usD 5,99% 32.680.985 46.715.066
EURO 3,29% 63.094.162 545.613.498
142.216.760 592.328.564

The redemption schedule of the borrowings as of 31 December 2014 and 31 December 2013 is as
follows:

31 December 31 December

2014 2013

To be paid within 1 year 154.161.798 142.216.760
To be paid between 1-2 years 64.816.025 82.616.721
To be paid between 2-3 years 57.328.078 65.235.499
To be paid between 3-4 years 72.578.118 62,293,433
To be paid between 4-3 years 72.578.118 53.886.535
5 and more than 5 years 307.721.326 328.296.376

929.183.463 734.545.324

For the long-term borrowings of the Group, there exists TL 11.594.500 (USD 5.000.000) of mortgages
over land, TL 5.962.467 (USD 2.571.248) of letters of guarantee, TL 235.364.900 (EURO 67.000.000
and USD 20.000.000) of guarantee given and TL 560.936.024 (USD 119.658.318 and EURQO
100.500.000) of conveyance on receivables (Note 12). Deferred finance expenses have been recognized
in deferred finance expenses which have been paid for the long-term borrowings of the Group. As of 31
December 2014 the deferred finance expenses of the Group, which have been amortised through the
maturity of the loans, is TL 26.059.970 (31 December 2013: TL 25.759.689) (Note 6). Group has also
given commercial enterprise pledge amounting to TL 290.000.000 as guarantee for the investment loans

"~ (Note 12). According to the investment loan agreements related with the investment loans used, at the

end of each financial year, the Group is obliged to meet some financial ratios, to be calculated over the
consolidated financial statements of the Group prepared in accordance with financial reporting standards
accepted by the Turkey Financial Reporting Standards (“TFRS”) of Turkey.
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NATURE AND LEVEL OF RISKS DERIVED FROM FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

a) Capital risk management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will be able to continue as a going
concern while maximizing the return to stakeholders through the optimization of the debt and equity
balance.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, cash and cash equivalents and equity attributable to
equity holders of the parent, comprising issued capital, reserves and retained earnings.

The management of the Group considers the cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of
capital. The management of the Group aims to balance its overall capital structure through the payment
of dividends, new share issues and the issue of new debt or the redemption of existing debt.

The Group controls its capital using the net debt/total capital ratio. This ratio is calculated as net debt
divided by the total capital amount. Net debt is calculated as total liability amount less cash and cash
equivalents. Total capital is calculated as shareholders’ equity plus the net debt amount as presented in
the balance sheet.

As of 31 December 2014 and 31 December 2013 net debt / total capital ratio is as follows:

2014 2013

1L TL

Total Financial Debt 029.183.463 734.545,324

Less: Cash and cash equivalents (188.692.607) (95.281.050)

Net Debt 740.490.836 639.264.274
Equity Attributable to

Owners of the Parent 241.216.449 219.855.345

Net Debt / Capital _ 3,07 2,91

b) Financial risk factors

The risks of the Group, resulted from operations, include market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The
Group’s risk management program generally seeks to minimize the effects of uncertainty in financial
market on financial performance of the Group.
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AYEN ENERJI A.S. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

{Amounts are expressed in Turkish Lira (TL)

NATURE AND LEVEL OF RISKS DERIVED FROM FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (cont’d)

b 1) Credit risk management fcont'd)

Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents and deposits with banks, as well as credit exposures to
customers, including outstanding receivables and committed transactions. The Group assesses the credit
quality of the customers by assessing the financial position of the customers, past experiences and other
factors as a part of its credit risk management programme. All of the concession arrangement receivables
amounting to TL 1.960.796 (2013: TL 6.571.638) and TL 6.232.537 (2013: TL 12.915.154) of trade
receivables are composed of the receivables from TETAS and TEIAS respectively. TETAS and TEIAS
are both state-owned entities which are responsible for the trading, wholesale and distribution activities
of the national power system operations in Turkey. Additionally, TETAS provides purchase guarantee
for the electricity production which are performed by the Group’s power plants with Build-Operate-
Transfer model. Therefore, credit risk over the assets of the Group is limited. Rest of the trade receivables
are related to gross sale activities, and mentioned receivables arises from industrial and commercial
customers. Group obtains guarantees from these wholesale customers when necessary.

As of 31 December 2014 and 2013, there are no past due receivables.

bh.2} Liguidiry risk management

Having a conservative liquidity risk management requires obtaining adequate level of cash in addition
to having the ability to utilize adequate level of borrowings and fund resources as well as closing market
positions.

The following table presents the maturity of Group’s derivative and non-derivative financial liabilities.
The tables have been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of non-derivative financial
liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group can be required to pay. The table includes both
interest and principal cash flows.

31 December 2014

Total cash

outflow

according to More than
Contructual maturity Carrving contract Less than3 3.12 1-5 Years 5 Years
apalysis Value (I+II+II+IVY  Months (1) Maonths (II) (i) (1058}
Non-derivative
financial liabilities
Borrowings 929.183.463  1.156.149427 86599865 23.789.083 380.342.828 665.417.65]
‘Trade payables 34.097.143 34.108.787 34.108.787 - - -
Trade payables to related
parties 435.219.629 47.371.345  47.371.345 - - -
Non-trade payables to related
parties 59.018.781 39.018.781 58.573.371 - 445410 -
Other long-term liabilities 70,175,251 88.151.020 2.2900.784 6872332 78987884 -
Total Habilities 1.137.694.267 1384799360 228944.152 30.661.435 459,776,122 665.417.651

(*} Sinceinterest rates of the loans are floating, total cash ouflows of financial liabilities are calculated over the interest rate
announced after the Group's last loan repayment,
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NATURE AND LEVEL OF RISKS DERIVED FROM FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (cont’d)

h.2) Liguidiry risk management (cont 'd)
31 December 2013

Total cash

outflow

according to More than
Contructual maturity Carrving contract Lessthan3 3-12 1-5 Years S Years
analysis Value (I+1I+11+1V) Months (I} Months (1) mn (IV)
Non-derivative

financial liabilities

Borrowings 734.545.324 §75.408.016 21.224.920 134,134,387 333.491.395 386.557.314
Trade payables 59.025.809 39,665,686  39.663.686 - - -
Trade payables to related
parties 82.840.693 §3.024.097 §3.024.097 - - -
Non-irade payables to related
parties 26.806.737 26.806.737  20.766.998  5.594329 445410 -
Total labilities 903,218,563  1.044.904.536 184.681.701 139728716 333.936805 386.557.314

(*) Since interest rates of the loans are floating, total cash ouflows of financial labilities are calculated over the interest

rate announced afier the Group’s last loan repayment.

b.3) Market risk management

The Group’s activities expose it primarily to the financial risks of changes in foreign currency exchange

rates and interest rates.

Market risk exposures of the Group are measured using sensitivity analysis.

There has been no change to the Group’s exposure to market risks or the manner in which it manages

and measures the risk.
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NATURE AND LEVEL OF RISKS DERIVED FROM FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS {(cont’d)

b 3) Market risk manasement (cont'd)

b. 3.1} Foreien currency risk management

Transactions in foreign currencics expose the Group to foreign currency risk.

As of 31 December 2014 and 2013 the foreign currency denominated assets and liabilities of monetary

and non-monetary ilems are as follows:

Trade receivables

Monetary financial assets

Due from short-term service concession arrangements
Other

CURRENT ASSETS

Due from long-term sérvice concession arrangements
Other
NON-CURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS

Trade payables
Financial borrowings
CURRENT LIABILITIES

Financial barrowings
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

TOTAL LIABILITIES

Net Foreign Currency Position

31 December 2014

TL Equivalent

LISD

EURO

7.358.135
73.322.908
26,613,132

2.448.381
17.738
11.476.619

595811
23.979.006

70

20,918 - 7416
107.315.113 13,942,738 26.583.223
90,367,450 38.969.964 -
2,832,378 - 1.604.211
93.200.028 38.969.964 1.004.211
200.515.141 52.912.702 27.587.434
43.519.547 430.515 13.674.707
104.459.982 16.426.654 23,528.987
147.979.529 16.857.169 38.603.694
775.021.665 10.500.002 206.130.113
775.021.665 10.500.002 266.130.113
923.001.194 27.357.171 304.733.807
(722.486.053) 15.555.531 (277.146.373)
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NATURE AND LEVEL OF RISKS DERIVED FROM FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (cont’d)

b3} Market risk manawement fcont 'd)

b 3.1} Foreign currency risk managsement (cont'd)

Trade receivables

Monctary financial assets

Due from shori-term service concession arrangements
Orther

CURRENT ASSETS

Due from long-term service concession arrangements
Other
NON-CURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS

Trade payables

Financial borrowings

Other current financial Habilities
CURRENT LIABILITIES

Financial borrowings
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

TOTAL LIABILITIES

Net Foreign Currency Position

31 December 2013

TL Equivalent Ush EUROD
17.682.710 7.152.344 823.246
24.379.034 138,530 8.2609.501
44.108.340 20.666.420 -
12,945 887 164 4,408,492
90.315.991 27.957.458 13.501.239

104.094.187 48.772.050 -
2,804,693 - 985,763
100.988.880 48.772.050 985.763
206.364.871 76.729.568 14.487.002
93.321.297 1.731.963 30.520.948
95,775,147 15.312.273 21,486,178
1.328.052 715.950 -
190.624.496 17.760.188 52.007.126

502.328.364

21.887.769

185.804.018

592.328.564

782.953.060

(576.648.18%)

21.887.769

39.647.957

37.681.551

185.804.018

237.811.144

{223.324.142)

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a 10% increase and decrease in USD, and EURO.
10% 1s the sensitivity rate used when reporting foreign currency risk internally to key management
personnel and represents management’s assessment of the possible change in foreign exchange rates,
The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary items and
adjusts their translation at the period end for a 10% change in foreign currency rates. A positive number

indicates an increase in profit or loss.
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NATURE AND LEVEL OF RISKS DERIVED FROM FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (cont’d)

b.3) Market risk management fcont'd)

b 3. 1) Foreien currency risk manaeement (cont’d)

The Group is mainly exposed to USD and EURO denominated foreign exchange risk.

In case 10% appreciation in USD against TL
US Dollar net asset / liability

Part of hedged from US Dollar risk (-)

US Dollar net effect

In case 10% appreciation in EURO against TL
EURO net asset / liability

Part of hedged from EURO risk (-}
EUROQ net effect

TOTAL

In case 10% appreciation in USD against TL
US Dollar net asset / Hability

Part of hedged from US Dollar risk (-)

US Dollar net effect

In case 10% appreciation in EURO against TL
EURO net asset / liability

Part of hedged from EURO risk (-)

EURO net effect

TOTAL

31 December 2014
Profit/Loss

Appreciation of

foreign currency

Depreciation of
foreign currency

5.926.072 (5.926.072)
5.926.072 (5.926.072)
(78.174.677) 78.174.677
{78.174.677) 78.174.677
(72.248.605) 72.248.605

31 Pecember 2013
Profit/Loss

Appreciation of

foreign currency

Depreciation of
foreign currency

7914316 (7.914.316)
7.914.316 (7.914.316)
(65.579.135) 65.579.135
(65.579.135) 65.579.135
(57.664.819) 57.664.819
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NATURE AND LEVEL OF RISKS DERIVED FROM FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (cont’d)

b.3) Market risk management fcont 'd)

b.3.2) Interest rate risk managentent

The Group is exposed to interest risks through the impact of borrowings, due to variable interes! rate
used. As of 31 December 2014, for USD denominated borrowings, had the interest rates
increased/decreased by 100 base points (1%) with all other variables held constant, net profit of the
Group due to loan interest loss/profit loans would have been decreased/increased by TL 124,306 (2013:
TL 40.753) mainly as a result of interest expenses on short-term and long-term borrowings. As of 31
December 2014, for EURO denominated borrowings, had the interest rates increased/decreased by 100
base points (1%) with all other variables held constant, net profit before taxation of the Group due to
foan interest loss/profit would have been decreased/increased by TL 3.731.564 (2013: TL 1.016.66%)
mainly as a result of interest expenses on short-term and long-term borrowings. In addition to these, as
of 31 December 2014, for TL issued bonds, had the interest rates increased/decreased by 100 base points
(1%) with all other variables held constant, net profit before taxation of the Group due fo interest related
with the bonds issued loss/profit loans would have been decreased/increased by 54.444 (2013: none).
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{Amounts are expressed in Turkish Lira (FL))

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

The guarantee given amounting to USD 8.645.000 for assurance of Camhca HEPP transfer is returned

as of January 20135,
DISCLOSURES RELATED TO THE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

31 December

31 December

2014 2013

Cash 56.594 36.270
Cash in bank 188.508.233 95.244.780
Demand deposits 116.827.762 94.353.472
Time deposits with maturities less than three months 71.680.473 691.308
Type B liquid funds 127.778 -
188.692.607 95.281.050

Explanations about the nature and level of risks related to cash and cash equivalents are provided in

Note 26.

As of 31 December 2014, the time deposits with maturities less than three months of the Group consists
of TL denominated time deposits with maturities in January 2013, The weighted average effective
interest rates of TL denominated time depaosits is 3,5% (2013 6%). There are no EURO denominated

time deposits oceured as of 2014 (2013: none).

As of 31 December 2013, the Group has restricted deposiis related with the loan obtained from

Commerzbank amounting to TL 12.773.775 (2014: None) (Note:16)



